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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

| am pleased to present to you the annual results for 2021.
Financial Results

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2021 was
HK$38,166,000 (2020: HK$51,251,000), a decrease of HK$13,085,000
or 25.53% compared to the year before. The loss for the year amounted
to HK$1,563,052,000 (2020: loss for the year of HK$56,650,000),
representing an increase of HK$1,506,402,000 from 2020. Some material
items for the increase in loss for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021 are
as follows:

1. a loss on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately
HK$1,467,958,000;

2. an impairment losses on loan and interest receivable of
HK$74,370,000 in current year as compared with an impairment
losses of HK$4,551,000 in last year. This impairment loss in current
year is mainly caused by the default of a senior note issued by an
independent listed group in Hong Kong, of which the Group has
subscribed for investment purpose in 2018; and

3. a share of loss of associates of HK$907,000 in current year as
compared with a share of loss of associates of HK$69,029,000 in last
year.

Loss per share amounted to HK125.98 cents (2020: loss per share of
HK4.57 cents), while the net asset value per share was HK$1.29 as at 3 1st
December, 2021 (2020: HK$3.50).

Dividend
No Dividend

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) does not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2021 (2020
interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend): Nil).

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28th October,
2021, the Board resolved a payment of special dividend of HK$0.95 per
ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$1,178,635,000 which was
paid on 6th December, 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“2022 AGM")

The 2022 AGM is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 19th May, 2022.
For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 16th
May, 2022 to Thursday, 19th May, 2022 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order for a Shareholder to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited of Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 13th May, 2022.

Management Discussion and Analysis
Business Review

The Group’s core businesses comprise property investment, property
leasing and estate management in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31st December, 2021, the Group's commercial
properties situated at Harbour Crystal Centre recorded an average
occupancy level of approximately 96%, but the performance of rental
income was not so good as expected. Following the coronavirus pandemic
in Hong Kong, retail business in Harbour Crystal Centre was seriously
affected. As a result, the Group has granted rent concession in average
around 40% of the original rents to some tenants depending on the trades
and mandatory closure period of premises in the year 2021 resulting a
decrease in rental income from Harbour Crystal Centre.

In October 2021, the Group disposed all properties held by the associates
of the Group in Hong Kong. In respect of the residential properties held by
the associate (33.33% owned) situated at The Redhill Peninsula, 2 houses
were sold and also 2 houses were completed during the ten months period
held by the associates of the Group. For the Group's industrial properties
situated at Ap Lei Chau, Hong Kong, the Harbour Industrial Centre and the
Oceanic Industrial Centre held by the associate (33.33% owned) recorded
an average occupancy level of approximately 50% and the rental income
was performed moderately during the ten months period held by the
associates of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Financial Review
Group Assets and Charges

The total assets of the Group have decreased from HK$4,544,502,000
last year to HK$1,791,326,000 in this year. The net assets of the Group
have decreased from HK$4,345,919,000 to HK$1,605,421,000. At 31st
December, 2021, no investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong
(2020: Nil) were pledged as security for banking facilities. The Group has
no bank loan, but will undergo a discussion with the bank for the renewal
of banking facilities and the bank has agreed to provide banking facilities if
necessary.

Group Financial Position, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The total liabilities of the Group have decreased from HK$198,583,000 as
at 31st December, 2020 to HK$185,905,000 as at 31st December, 2021.
The Group had cash and bank balances of HK$119,853,000 as at 31st
December, 2021 (2020: HK$186,175,000). The ratio of total liabilities
to total assets was approximately 10.38% (2020: 4.37%). As at 31st
December, 2021, the Group had no bank loans (2020: Nil) and the total
equity was HK$1,605,421,000 (2020: HK$4,345,919,000).

As at 31st December, 2021, the current assets of the Group, amounting to
HK$269,058,000 (2020: HK$445,823,000), exceeded its current liabilities
by HK$246,861,000 (2020: HK$414,089,000).

For the year ended 31st December, 2021, the Group had no material
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and no related hedges and there
were no contingent liabilities.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Material Acquisitions and Disposals

During the year, the Company disposed the interests in associates (such
associates being private companies incorporated in Hong Kong) through
the disposal of the entire issued share capital and shareholder's loan of an
investment holding company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
at the consideration of HK$1,080,000,000 to a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tian An China Investments Company Limited. Further details
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year and up to the date
of this Annual Report.

Event after the Reporting Date

There were no material events after the reporting date.
Financial/Operational Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

For the year of 2021, the Group set the following operational KPIs to
maintain high competitiveness:

(1) For the investment properties managed by the Group, our aim is to
maintain the same as last year in the total rental income.

Having reviewed the annual performance, these KPIs cannot be achieved
due to the Coronavirus outbreak. The Group will keep updating its
operational KPIs and sale/leasing strategy to adapt the market changes.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Future Likely Development

Objectives for 2022 are as follows:

M

@)

3)

We will continue to improve our investment portfolio through
acquisition of quality properties at attractive valuations and disposals
of under-performing properties in order to balance the demands of
short-term returns and long-term capital appreciation.

We will review our management system and cost structure so as to
improve efficiency and reduce expenses where possible.

We will consider gearing up our projects in a responsible manner in
order to increase our return on equity.

COVID-19 Response

The Group continued to take preventive measures to protect the health

and safety of our workforce, their families, local suppliers and neighbouring

communities while ensuring a safe environment for operations to continue

as usual. For example:

measures to maximize social distancing and staff protection within
the offices;

meetings held off-site or by conference calls or video conference as
far as possible;

cancellation of all non-essential travel;

flexible and remote working plans for employees;

restrictions on office access and temperature screening;
self-isolation following travel, development of symptoms, or
interaction with a confirmed case of COVID-19 and requirement to
undergo a coronavirus test as and when necessary at the Company's

cost; and

increased inventory of face mask, hand sanitiser and hygiene supplies
and increased focus on cleaning and sanitation.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
COVID-19 Response (continued)

The Group also joined HKSAR Government's “Early Vaccination for All"
campaign by offering vaccination leave and a special cash incentive to
employees who completed two vaccinations on or before 31st July, 2021.

Business Outlook

We expect the dramatic rise in COVID-19 cases in Hong Kong will drag
on our business performance. The largest negative effect will be on the
Group's retail space in Harbour Crystal Centre (portion), where tenants in
the hospitality industry will continue to suffer from government restrictions.
It also appears that the borders with mainland China will not fully re-open
for some time, which given the location of the Harbour Crystal Centre near
the train station, will cause our shopper numbers to seriously suffer.

Due to the greater uncertainty in the local economy, the office leasing
market will also continue to show weak demand. We expect the Group's
office space in Billion Centre to lease at lower rates than previously.

Overall, we remain positive on the business prospects for Hong Kong longer
term. Given the rapidly increasing COVID-19 vaccination rate locally, we
foresee normal international travel to resume and borders with mainland
China to reopen by year end, which we are hopeful will also result in
better trading conditions for the Group. In the meantime, some particularly
attractive opportunities to add to our portfolio may become available.

Appreciation

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and the
staff for their diligence and contributions to the Group in the past year, to
the shareholders of the Company for their understanding and support, and
to the customers for their trust.

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March, 2022
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
as at 31st December, 2021

BEEmR
(FEFR)

Total gross Hfi FMEESLE HimER
ek T R SR 1S i floor area Car parking Percentage Lease
Location Lot No. Use (sq. ft.) spaces owned expiry
BrEME
Investment properties
S
Hong Kong
BP0 (F) NEAME BXE 138,663 - 80 2053*

BRI MRRABINE R ZE 10058  106005% 8,881 - 40 2053*
Harbour Crystal Centre (portion) K.IL. 10600  Commercial 30 100 2053¢#
100 Granville Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon
B TE S0 (B0 WM T% &8 266,126 59 - 2055¢#
ERBEBF 11657
B A BT 1 05%
Harbour Industrial Centre (portion)* AlLL116 Industrial/
No. 10, Lee Hing Street, Ap Lei Godown
Chau, Aberdeen, Hong Kong
BETEHO(ED)* WHIMALE T%/88 741,706 74 - 2055*
EEEBT 11657
RS A2 AT 255
Oceanic Industrial Centre (portion)* AlL116 Industrial/
No. 2, Lee Lok Street, Ap Lei Godown
Chau, Aberdeen, Hong Kong
wREETL(ER)* MIER22435% BE/ MAE 27,457 - - 2843+
BB ZERER
ERAKBHR58-645%
Queen’s Centre (portion)* I.L2243RP.  Commercial/
58-64 Queen's Road East, Offices

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES (continued)
as at 31st December, 2021

HEZEEH
(FEAR)

Total gross Hfi FMEESLE HimER
ek T R SR 1S i floor area Car parking Percentage Lease
Location Lot No. Use (sq. ft.) spaces owned expiry
FEJETEAE(ER)* HEAMER I 134,236 10 - 2047*

M EEE4 29%%
Wah Shun Industrial Building Y.T.IL29 Industrial
(portion)*
4 Cho Yuen Street,
Yau Tong, Kowloon
A BE—H(ERD)* WBEREEME FE 10,427 - - 2056+
BREREBZ B8 10508%
The Redhill Peninsula, Phase 1 R.B.L.1050 Residential
(portion)*
18 Pak Pat Shan Road,
Tai Tam, Hong Kong
AL B — B (ERD)* MEPBEMER T 98,250 - - 2056+
EERNEOZEILE 18 10505k
The Redhill Peninsula, Phase 2 R.B.L.1050 Residential
(portion)*
18 Pak Pat Shan Road,
Tai Tam, Hong Kong
AT SR (B ) * MRBHEME B - 101 - 2056*
BERERNELRZILEI8R 10508%%
The Redhill Peninsula, Phase 4 R.B.L.1050 Car Parking
(portion)* Spaces
18 Pak Pat Shan Road,
Tai Tam, Hong Kong
* RZZBZ—F+7 AEEEHEFEMEHAEL  * Property interests held by the associates of the Group were disposed in October
SEZBERAREZME - 2021.
* ZEMHEARBBOEASEE - * These properties are held on medium lease.

o ZMEARHEOTARSE -

i The property is held on long lease.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of transparency, accountability and independence. The board of directors of
the Company (“Board") believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

Corporate Governance Code

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”, amended since
1st January, 2022 with the code provisions re-numbered) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), the Board has reviewed
the corporate governance practices of the Company with the adoption of
the various enhanced procedures which are detailed in this report. The
Company has applied the principles of, and complied with, the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31st December,
2021, except for certain deviations as specified with considered reasons
for such deviations as explained below. The Board will review the current
practices at least annually, and make appropriate changes if considered
necessary.

The Board

The Board currently comprises seven directors (“Directors”) in total, with
four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors
("INEDs"). The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date
of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman)
Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive)
Edwin Lo King Yau

Tao Tsan Sang

Li Chak Hung
Choi Kin Man
Lisa Yang Lai Sum

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section in the Directors’
Report on pages 38 to 40. There are no family or other material
relationships among members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Process

During the year, the INEDs provided the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience.
Their active participation in the Board and committee meetings brought
independent judgement on issues relating to the Group's strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the interests of
all shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company has
had three INEDs representing not less than one-third of the Board. At
least one of the INEDs has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his/her independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group's annual and interim results and other ad hoc matters
which need to be dealt with. During the year, eight Board meetings were
held and the individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings
of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and general
meeting during the year ended 3 1st December, 2021 are set out below:

HE BTERZRE
Number of meetings attended/held
FMZEAE EUZAY BRAE
EXE®  Remuneration Audit General
EEfg Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
BiTEE: Executive Directors:
THEZE) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman) 8/8 0/2
PRI (7Tl #EE) Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive) 8/8 2/2
Ehy Edwin Lo King Yau 4/8 1/2
HgE Tao Tsan Sang 8/8 2/2
BUFHRTEE: INEDs:
T Li Chak Hung 8/8 1/1 2/2 2/2
R Choi Kin Man 8/8 1/1 2/2 2/2
HER Lisa Yang Lai Sum 8/8 1/1 2/2 1/2
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The Board (continued)
Board Process (continued)

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual operating budget, annual and
interim results, approval of Directors’ appointment or re-appointment
(based on the recommendations made by the Nomination Committee),
material contracts and transactions, corporate governance as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated the day-
to-day responsibility to the executive management under the instruction/
supervision of the Executive Committee which has its specific written terms
of reference. The respective functions of the Board and management of the
Company have been formalised and set out in writing and will be reviewed
and updated by the Board from time to time to ensure that they are
consistent with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board
meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board in
preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying Board
papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended
date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other
Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
all Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following Board
meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder or
a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The articles
of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”) also stipulate
that save for the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain
from voting on any Board resolution and not be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director
or any of his/her close associates has a material interest.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Process (continued)

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the Company's senior management. Directors will be continuously
updated on the major development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. In addition, a written procedure has
been established since August 2017 to enable the Directors, in discharge
of their duties, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

For continuous professional development, in addition to Directors’

RABERBE R 2 XF MBI - BELE 2 attendance at meetings and review of papers and circulars sent by the
EEBENT management of the Company, Directors participated in the activities
including the following:
BHGSRERBRED
Participation in Continuous
Professional Development Activities
HEREEREARZ
W e R
Attending trainings/
REESEN briefings/seminars/
Reading conference relevant to
EREMRE Name of Directors Regulatory Updates Directors’ duties
BiESR: Executive Directors:
FRIE(ERE) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman) v v/
FRIB (7748 ) Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive) v/ v
Bt Edwin Lo King Yau v/ v
HEE Tao Tsan Sang v v
BIIERITES : INEDs:
B3 Li Chak Hung v v
g2ER Choi Kin Man v/ v
HER Lisa Yang Lai Sum v v
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Diversity

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy in August 2017
which sets out the objectives and principles regarding board diversity for
the purpose of achieving the Company's strategic objectives of balanced
diversity at the Board as far as practicable. Board appointments will be
based on merit and candidates will be considered against measurable
objectives, taking into account the Company's business and needs.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and skills. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates may bring to the Board.

Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 (which has been re-numbered as code provision
C.2.1 since 1st January, 2022) of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive (“CE") should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, being
the Chairman of the Board, is primarily responsible for the leadership
of the Board, ensuring that (i) all significant policy issues are discussed
by the Board in a timely and constructive manner; (ii) all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; and (iii) the Directors
receive accurate, timely and clear information. The functions of the CE are
performed by Mr. Lee Shu Yin, the Chief Executive of the Company, who
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's business.
Their responsibilities are clearly segregated and have been set out in writing
and approved by the Board in August 2017, and subsequently updated in
January 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee include the
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria for the selection
and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from
the Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her appointment. This
induction package is a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
the responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a director
pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance. In addition, this induction package includes materials
briefly describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation for
the corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. Directors will
be continuously updated on any major developments of the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeeping of good corporate governance practices.

All INEDs of the Company were appointed for a specific term, but subject to
the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable
laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible
for re-election. The term of appointment of the INEDs has been renewed
for further two years commencing from 1st January, 2021.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting
of the Company ("AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Further, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company whilst for
those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be eligible
for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and
has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate governance
functions in August 2017.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions
include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v) reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2021 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees

The Board has established various committees, including a Nomination
Committee, a Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and an
Executive Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of
reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to
all Board members and the committees are required to report back to
the Board on their decisions and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in
the section headed “The Board” of this report, have been adopted for the
committee meetings so far as practicable.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since March 2012
and is chaired by an INED and comprises all INEDs. Currently, the
Nomination Committee consists of three members, including Mr. Li Chak
Hung (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Choi Kin Man and
Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company's policy if considered
necessary. The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are
included in its terms of reference, which was revised in August 2017 and
January 2019 and are available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee has formulated and set out the nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) in its terms of reference. The objective of
the Nomination Policy is to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company'’s business. To ensure changes to the Board composition can
be managed without undue disruption, a formal, considered and transparent
procedure is in place for selection, appointment and re-appointment of
Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered
necessary), including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of
a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and
when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision
by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities. Further
details of the selection criteria and the procedure are set out in the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee which are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in
accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal with matters by
way of circulation. In 2021, no Nomination Committee meeting was held
while the Nomination Committee dealt with matters by way of circulation.
In 2021 and up to the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
performed the works as summarised below:

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the proposed
resolutions for re-election of the retiring Directors at 2021 AGM and
2022 AGM; and

(i)  reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
and assessed the independence of each INED.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since September
2005 and currently consists of three members, including Mr. Choi Kin Man
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Li Chak Hung and Ms.
Lisa Yang Lai Sum, all being the INEDs. The Remuneration Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access
to independent professional advice according to the Company's policy if
considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are included in its terms of reference, which was revised in
August 2017 and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance
with the code provision B.1.2 (which has been re-numbered as code
provision E.1.2 since 1st January, 2022) of the CG Code, but with a
deviation from the code provision that the Remuneration Committee shall
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the Executive Directors only and not senior management (as opposed to
executive directors and senior management under the code provision). The
reasons for the above deviation are summarised as below:

(i)  the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not properly
in a position to evaluate the performance of senior management
and that this evaluation process is more effectively carried out by the
Executive Directors;

(i) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and
control senior management and thus must be able to control their
compensation; and

(i) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior management
more than industry standards and thus Shareholders will benefit by
reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in accordance
with its terms of reference. One Remuneration Committee meeting was
held in 2021 and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “The Board" of this report.
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Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2021. In
2021 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
performed the works as summarised below:

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the existing
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;

(i) reviewed the remuneration packages of all the Executive Directors
and INEDs for the year ended 31st December, 2020;

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the bonus for
the year ended 31st December, 2020 and the salary for the year
2021 of the CE; and

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the Directors’
fee for the year 2021.

Each Director will be entitled to a Director's fee. Further remuneration
payable to Directors (including any service fees of the INEDs) for their
additional responsibilities and services will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their employment contracts or service contracts
as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 11
to the consolidated financial statements whereas detailed changes in the
emoluments of certain Directors during the interim period and up to the
date of the Interim Report were also disclosed in the Interim Report of the
Company dated 19th August, 2021. Details of the remuneration policy
of the Group are also set out in the “Employee” section contained in the
Directors’ Report on page 46.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since September 1998 and
currently consists of three INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity,
the Audit Committee is chaired by an INED with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Choi Kin Man and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice according to the
Company's policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions
of the Audit Committee are included in its terms of reference, which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised from time
to time to comply with the code provision C.3.3 (which has been re-
numbered as code provision D.3.3 since 1st January, 2022) of the CG
Code, but with deviations from the code provision of the audit committee’s
responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to
supply non-audit services;

(i)  ensure the management has performed its duty to have effective risk
management and internal control systems; and

(i) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the listed company.
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Board Committees (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall recommend (as
opposed to implement under the code provision) the policy on the
engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services for the
following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to
develop policy and make appropriate recommendations;

(i)  the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such
policy and recommendations is through the Executive Directors and
management; and

(i)  INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and follow
up the same on a day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only possesses
the effective ability to scrutinise (as opposed to ensure under the code
provision) whether management has performed its duty to have effective
risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee is not
equipped to ensure that the same is in place as this would involve day-
to-day supervision and the employment of permanent experts. The Audit
Committee is not in a position either to ensure co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly,
the Audit Committee is not in a position to ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced but it can check whether it is adequately
resourced.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance with
its terms of reference. Two Audit Committee meetings were held in 2021
and the attendance of each member is set out in the section headed “The
Board” of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also
dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2021. In 2021 and up
to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the works as
summarised below:

®

(ii)

(ii)

(v)

V)

(Vi)

(vii)

reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the
external auditor in respect of the interim results review for the six
months ended 30th June, 2021 (“2021 Interim Review") and the
final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2021 (“2021 Final
Audit”) of the Group;

reviewed the audit completion reports from the external auditor and
the management's response in relation to the final audit for the year
ended 31st December, 2020, 2021 Interim Review and 2021 Final
Audit;

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the financial
reports for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020, for the six months
ended 30th June, 2021 and for the year ended 31st December,
2021 together with the relevant management representation letters
and announcements;

reviewed the internal audit plan and the internal audit reports
prepared by the Internal Audit Function of the Group (“IA Function”);

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the updated
reports on substantiation of the resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group's accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and
budget;

reviewed and recommended for the Board's annual review the
Whistle Blower Policy, Procedures for the Identification and Monitoring
of Connected Transactions, Related Party Transaction Policies and
Procedures, Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information and Policy
on Risk Management, Compliance and Internal Control Procedures;
and

reviewed and recommended for the Board's annual review the
Group's risk management and internal control systems.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since July 2017 and
currently consists of four Executive Directors, being Messrs. Patrick Lee Seng
Wei (Chairman of the Executive Committee), Lee Shu Yin, Edwin Lo King
Yau and Tao Tsan Sang. The Executive Committee is vested with all the
general powers of management and control of the activities of the Group as
are vested in the Board, save for those matters which are reserved for the
Board's decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss the
operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with matters by way of
circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible for undertaking
and supervising the day-to-day management and is empowered:

(i)  to formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business
activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the Group as
determined by the Board.

Company Secretary

Ms. Cynthia Chen Si Ying is the Company Secretary of the Company. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board governance
matters, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed
and for facilitating communications among Directors as well as with the
Shareholders and management.

Ms. Chen is a fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute and
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries). During the year, Ms. Chen
undertook over 15 hours of relevant professional training to update her
skills and knowledge.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant
Employees

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate dealings in the
securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries who are considered to be likely in possession of inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Finance Department, the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2021, the accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance were complied with. The Directors believe
that they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable and have ensured that the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's external auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 48 to 53.



o ] g

ERELWEWR)

BEPGE )
RIBEERNMER
EEeABESERNAEERREIER N
ZRIME  UREREEENERER &
RSB B RARERE c R T —
& EERDEBEREEeRAATESH -
NEBE RIS ERBAE T EOER 8 TAR
RAE5 - M&ﬁ@ai%%imEM%&&ﬁ
BB MELRE

AEBRBERRABEERNREEREM(TIE
B REEBARERARIER - RFER
(BXIFT2HER) FRRRZER - X HBAE

BEHEERENMER - EHEREBKBERER
EEZRBRERETEZAE - W BRERE

kAREETREEEE
BEETRERERS -

ST HER

AEBTEELRRLEFABR - FHEREE
TREBES 2R - FEFETERBBEER
BEULBMATEERASRESAZRETENRE
W7 AR RET GRS - AEERRER
EHNTEZESIRIMEREERREZREGNE
EFgUBMRERERRAREERGZ AR -
AR GBAEYNIEN

FRAREEHEEE
Frzmit - WA 4R

MR A 2 &R R MR
AU BHERMEI0(b) RE

CEREFIZAEFI4AZ[FTERABMNTHETE
M —EA o
AEREFRT
NPFANEzEERNEETS IR NERZES
B3R - AESEA e — M AL ERBREE XA
EReLE Ry 2 i M A RIE R AT B L ET

oF o

o

A RREA hBE AR B2 N BRZRATA T8I R M RR &R
BEERRBZZEEREFTEEM -

Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. In 2021,
the Board, through the Audit Committee, had reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk
of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group's agreed
objectives and goals. They have a key role in the management of risks
that are significant to the fulfilment of business objectives. In addition, they
should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper accounting records
and assist in the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Systems and procedures are put in place to identify, evaluate and manage
the risks of different businesses and activities. The annual assessment
is performed through the completion by the relevant business units and
department heads of their respective responsibility statements as co-
ordinated by the IA Function. The result and findings are reported to the
Chairman of Executive Committee who puts forward the same to the
Audit Committee and the Board for review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, which have been considered
effective and adequate.

A discussion of the policies and procedures on the management of each of
the major types of risk which the Group is facing is included in note 30(b)
to the consolidated financial statements and under “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties” section contained in Directors’ Report on pages 33 to 34.

Internal Audit

The Head of IA Function reports to the Chairman of the Board and the
Audit Committee. The IA Function generally carries out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems.

The internal audit plan and internal audit reports were prepared by the IA
Function and issued to the Audit Committee and the Board for review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information
(“Policy”) effective on 1st January, 2013, and subsequently updated in
August 2017, with respect to the procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Policy sets out
guidelines and procedures to the Directors and relevant officers of the
Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be disseminated
to the public on an equal basis and in timely manner. Directors and
relevant officers in possession of potential inside information and/or inside
information are required to take reasonable measures to ensure that proper
safeguards are in place to preserve strict confidentiality of inside information
and to ensure that its recipients recognise their obligations to maintain the
information confidential. The Policy shall be updated and revised as and
when necessary in light of changes in circumstances and changes in the
Listing Rules, Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements from time to time.

External Auditor's Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Group's external auditor is set
out as follows:

FET

REREE G Z RS Services rendered for the Group HK$'000

ZH AR TS Audit services 1,273
SERBRG (BEEM PRS- Non-audit services (including review of interim results,

FE N N B BE SRR RET &P results announcements and review of compliance

NREEESTEE) of Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance and

working capital forecast) 611

it Total 1,884
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
Such published documents together with the latest corporate information
and news are also made available on the website of the Company.

The Company's AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with Shareholders. The Chairman actively participates at the
AGM and personally chairs the meeting to answer any questions from
Shareholders. The chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence, another
member of the respective committees or failing that their respective duly
appointed delegate, are also available to answer questions at the AGM.
The chairman of any independent board committee formed as necessary
or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is appointed,
at least a member of the independent board committee) will also be
available to answer questions at any general meeting of Shareholders to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent Shareholders' approval.

During the year, the 2021 AGM and an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company (“EGM") were held on 17th May, 2021 and 26th October,
2021 respectively. The attendance records of the Directors at the general
meetings is set out in the section headed “The Board" of this report.

Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei (“Mr. Lee", the Chairman of the Board), due
to other business engagements, was unable to attend the 2021 AGM
resulting in a deviation from the code provision E.1.2 (which has been
re-numbered as code provision F.2.2 since 1st January, 2022) of the
CG Code. Despite his absence, Mr. Lee had reviewed all the documents
and procedures of the 2021 AGM before the meeting, and all records
and minutes of the 2021 AGM have been circulated to Mr. Lee after the
meeting for information. Moreover, Mr. Lee Shu Yin, the Chief Executive of
the Company, who attended and chaired the meeting as Mr. Lee's delegate
in the Board, and the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees were present thereat and were available to answer questions
to ensure effective communication with the Shareholders.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each
substantial issue, including the re-election of retiring Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Communication with Shareholders (continued)

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days in case of all other general meetings. An explanation of the
detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders
at the commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions
from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll results are
published in the manner prescribed under the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings as at the date of
deposit of the requisition can request the Directors to convene an EGM
by sending a written request to the registered office of the Company
("Registered Office”). Such requisition must state the general nature of
the business to be dealt with at the EGM and must be authenticated
by the person or persons making it. Besides, Shareholders may make
a proposal (“Proposal”) at a Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it in
written form to the Board at the Registered Office in accordance with the
Companies Ordinance and the Articles of Association where applicable. The
Proposal shall be in the form of a proposed resolution, which shall clearly
and concisely set out the Proposal for discussion and be relevant to the
Company's business scope.

The Board updated a shareholders’ communication policy in August
2017. A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at the Registered
Office for the attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the
nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In addition,
Shareholders can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy effective on 1st January,
2019. The Company's Dividend Policy aims at providing reasonable and
sustainable returns to its Shareholders whilst maintaining a position of
financial stability which allows the Company to take advantage of any
investment and expansion opportunities that may arise from time to time.

The Board may declare or propose dividends on an annual basis and/or
may declare interim dividends or special dividends. Proposal or declaration
of dividends by the Board is subject to consideration of the Company's and
the Group's operating results, accumulated and future earnings, gearing,
liquidity position, capital commitment requirement and future expansion
plan as well as general economic conditions and external factors that may
have impact on the financial performance and position of the Company
and the Group. In addition, as the Company is a holding company, the
Board will also consider the dividends received from its subsidiaries and
associates as the ability to pay dividends by the Company is dependent on
the dividends received from those subsidiaries and associates.

The Board will regularly review the dividend policy and will amend and/or
modify the dividend policy if necessary.

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but also about
promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will
continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current practices
on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any
views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve our
transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March, 2022
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents its annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31st December,
2021.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities and details of its principal subsidiaries as at 3 1st December, 2021
and associates as at 28th October, 2021 are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group's revenue for the year was derived mainly from activities carried
out in Hong Kong. The breakdown by principal activities of the Group's
revenue and the contribution to profit before taxation for the year ended
31st December, 2021 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

Detailed review of the Group’s business is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement (“CS") on page 5. Future development of the Company’s
business is set out in the CS on page 8. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the CS on page 7.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group adopts a comprehensive risk management framework. Risk
management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated
to react to changes in market conditions and the Group's business strategy.
The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) reviews risk-
related policies and scrutinises that management has performed its duty
to have effective risk management and internal control systems necessary
for monitoring and controlling major risks arising from the Group's business
activities, changing external risks and the regulatory environment, and
reports to the Board on the above.
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Business Review (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
Financial Risk

Financial risk includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Market risk
concerns that the value of an investment will change due to movements
in market factors and which can be further divided into interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk. Credit risk is the risk of
losses arising from clients or counterparties failing to make payments as
contracted. Liquidity risk concerns that a given security or asset cannot be
traded readily in the market to prevent a loss or make the required profit.
Further discussion on financial risk management is outlined in note 30(b)
“Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies” to the consolidated
financial statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is concerned with possible losses caused by inadequate or
failed internal processes, people, systems or external events. Operational
risk is mitigated and controlled through establishing robust internal controls,
setting out clear lines of responsibility, proper segregation of duties and
effective internal reporting and contingency planning. It is our corporate
culture that the business and operating line management are fully aware of,
and responsible for, managing the operational risks of their business units
on a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring and reviews are conducted
by the Internal Audit Function of the Group which reports regularly to the
Chairman of the Board and the Audit Committee.

Uncertainties

The Group's business and profitability growth in the year under review are
affected by the uncertainty of the property market. The supply and demand
of the properties, government interventions over the property market price,
house price indexes and interest rates change in Hong Kong may induce a
material adjustment on the Group's business, financial position and results.
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Business Review (continued)
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally
responsible manner, the Group endeavours to comply with the laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection legislated by the local
government for managing the properties.

The Group is also committed to building an eco-friendly corporation. It is the
Group's aim to reduce the impacts of its operations on the environment.
The environmental policies of the Group include minimising consumption
of paper and electricity, reducing waste and promoting the use of electronic
communication and storage.

For further information about the environmental policies and performance
of the Group during the year, please refer to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” which will be separately released on the website
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the
website of the Company in the “ESG Reports” section under “Investor
Relations”, the discussions of which form part of this directors’ report.

To access the online version of the ESG Report, please refer to the website
addresses set out in the “Corporate Information” on page 3 of this Annual
Report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied
in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During
the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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Results and Dividends

The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 54 and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31st December, 2021 (2020 interim dividend (in lieu of a final
dividend): Nil).

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28th October,
2021 the Board resolved a payment of special dividend of HK$0.95 per
ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$1,178,635,000 which was
paid on 6th December, 2021.

Debentures

The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

Equity-Linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Borrowings

The Group does not have any borrowings as at 31st December 2021
(2020: Nil).
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Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December, 2021,
calculated under part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622), amounted to HK$18,719,000 (2020: HK$157,324,000).

Properties

Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 3 1st December, 2021 are
set out on pages 10to 11.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Lee Shu Yin

Edwin Lo King Yau
Tao Tsan Sang

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Li Chak Hung
Choi Kin Man
Lisa Yang Lai Sum

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”), Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, Mr. Edwin Lo
King Yau and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum shall retire from office by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

A list of names of all the directors who have served on the boards of
the Company's subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this
report are available on the website of the Company under the “Corporate
Governance” section.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
Executive Directors

Patrick Lee Seng Wei, aged 70, was appointed an Executive Director
of the Company in November 2016 and was the Chief Executive of the
Company during the period from December 2016 to January 2018.
Mr. Lee was appointed the Chairman of the Company in January 2018.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Being an
architect, he worked for IBM Australia before becoming involved in property
development in Malaysia and Hong Kong more than thirty years ago. He
has extensive experience in the property field. Mr. Lee is the managing
director and an executive director of Tian An China Investments Company
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Lee Shu Yin, aged 55, has been the Chief Executive and an Executive
Director of the Company since January 2018. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over twenty years of experience in
corporate finance, investment and management. Mr. Lee served as Chief
Investment Officer of Grand River Properties Ltd. and as an executive of
PGR Asian RE Fund GP, Ltd., which managed a property-related investment
account of a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tian An China Investments
Company Limited (“TACI"), a substantial shareholder of the Company.
He is an independent non-executive director of Altus Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock Code: 8149). Mr. Lee was a Non-Executive Director of TACI during
the period from March 2011 to June 2017 and an Executive Director of
the same company from June 2017 to January 2018. He served various
positions as a vice president and director in the Asian Equities division of JP
Morgan Securities Limited/Robert Fleming Securities and as an executive
director of Goldman Sachs International in Hong Kong. He holds a Master's
Degree in Finance from the London Business School, and Bachelor of Arts
and Bachelor of Science Degrees from Stanford University. Mr. Lee is a
Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)

Executive Directors

Edwin Lo King Yau, aged 61, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lo holds a Master's Degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University, Australia and is a Chartered Secretary and a Chartered
Governance Professional. He had served various executive roles in several
companies in Hong Kong including as company secretary for public listed
companies. Mr. Lo is also an executive director of each of Allied Group
Limited and Tian An China Investments Company Limited, the substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Tao Tsan Sang, aged 57, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Tao holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting,
financial management and China business field. Mr. Tao is an executive
director and the finance director of Tian An China Investments Company
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Li Chak Hung, aged 57, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2017. Mr. Li graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor's Degree of
Business Administration. Mr. Li is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has 30 years’ experience in
accounting, auditing, taxation and financial management. Mr. Li is currently
an independent non-executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 102) and Alpha Professional Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
948) and was an independent non-executive director of Sandmartin
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 482) from September 2016 to
August 2021, DreamEast Group Limited (Stock Code: 593) from October
2004 to December 2019 and Alibaba Pictures Group Limited (Stock Code:
1060) from September 2004 to June 2014, whereas all companies are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Choi Kin Man, aged 62, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2017. Mr. Choi graduated from Jinan
University holding a Bachelor's Degree in Journalism and from University
of South Australia with a Master's Degree in Business Administration. Mr.
Choi has 20 years of experience in the media and public relations industry,
and is currently the managing director of Shima & Co. Limited. Mr. Choi was
previously a director of Capital Communications Corp., and had participated
in a number of public relations and communications projects.

Lisa Yang Lai Sum, aged 55, was appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in March 2017. She graduated from the
University of Sydney with a Bachelor's Degree in Law and Economics and
is also qualified as a solicitor in Australia and England. She is a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant of ONC Lawyers. Ms. Yang is also
an independent non-executive director of each of Allied Group Limited and
Tian An China Investments Company Limited, the substantial shareholders
of the Company, and China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited.

Senior Management

Cynthia Chen Si Ying, aged 55, is the Company Secretary of the
Company. She joined the Company in April 2011. Ms. Chen holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration and a Master's Degree
in Corporate Governance. She is a fellow of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries) and a fellow of The Chartered Governance
Institute. She has more than twenty years’ extensive experience in the
company secretarial practice and has almost thirty years' experience in the
management of large and well-known enterprises, and she has worked in
Singapore for more than three years.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company ("AGM") has an unexpired service
contract with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Terms of Office for the Non-Executive Directors

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs") were appointed
for a specific term of two years which shall continue until 31st December,
2022 but subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or
any other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office.

Directors’ Interests

As at 31st December, 2021, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following Directors (not
being the INEDs) are considered to have interests in the businesses listed
below which compete or are likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out below:

1. Messrs. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, Edwin Lo King Yau and Tao Tsan Sang
are directors of TACI which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly
engaged in the businesses of money lending, property investment
and property management; and

2. Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau is a director of Allied Group Limited which,
through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses
of money lending, property investment and property management.

Although the above-mentioned Directors have competing interests in other
companies by virtue of their respective common directorship, they will fuffil
their fiduciary duties in order to ensure that they will act in the best interests
of the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) and the Company
as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable of carrying on its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
such companies.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors
or an entity connected with the Directors had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its
fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or Chief Executives (including their spouses and
children under the age of 18) of the Company had any interests in or
was granted any right to subscribe in any shares, underlying shares, or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts and the agreements relating to the sharing
of administrative services and management services (“Service Agreement”)
and the sharing of internal audit services and management information
system services (“IA & MIS Service Agreement”), no other contracts, relating
to the management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during
the year.

The Company entered into the Service Agreement with TACI on 2nd
January, 2020 for a period of three years from 1st January, 2020 to 31st
December, 2022.

Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, being the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company, and the managing director and an executive director of TAC, is
deemed to be interested in the Service Agreement. Messrs. Edwin Lo King
Yau and Tao Tsan Sang, being the Executive Directors of the Company and
the executive directors of TACI, are deemed to be interested in the Service
Agreement.

The Company entered into the IA & MIS Service Agreement with Allied
Group Limited (“AGL") on 2nd January, 2020 for a period of three years
from 1st January, 2020 to 3 1st December, 2022.

Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau, being an Executive Director of the Company and
an executive director of AGL, is deemed to be interested in the 1A & MIS
Service Agreement.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provides that every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions
against the Directors.
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FTERREMEMA LT 2R Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
BEERM RZE_—F+-_A=+—H &
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To the best of Directors’ knowledge, as at 31st December, 2021, the
Shareholders had interests in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336

NE of the SFO:
BERRINRERRIGZHE
Number of shares and underlying shares interested
BAER EEER
(LESES (&M HERT
ASBER) Zigs) ez
Personal Corporate #;has
Interests Interests Approximate
(held as (interest of Hftiga ELMEE % of the total
BREE beneficial controlled Other Total number of
Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests issued shares
KL - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.98%
TACI (Mizt1)
(Note 1)
BAKE - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.98%
AGL (H1#3) (Ktit2)
(Note 3) (Note 2)
Lee and Lee Trust - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.98%
(Btst4) (K1zt2)
(Note 4) (Note 2)
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Substantial Shareholders' and Other Persons’ Interests

Notes:

1. The interest was held by Autobest Holdings Limited (“Autobest”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Advance Growth Investments Limited (“Advance Growth"). As
Advance Growth is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TACI, TACI was therefore deemed
to have an interest in the shares in which Autobest was interested.

2. This represents the same interests of TACI in 930,376,898 shares.

3. AGL, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, indirectly owned approximately 50.83%
of the total number of issued shares of TACI and was therefore deemed to have an
interest in the shares in which TACI was interested.

4. Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are the trustees of
Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. The Lee and Lee Trust controlled
approximately 74.96% of the total number of issued shares of AGL (inclusive
of Mr. Lee Seng Hui's personal interests) and was therefore deemed to have an
interest in the shares in which AGL was interested through TACI.

5. All interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2021, the Company was
not notified of any other persons having any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Connected Transaction

As disclosed in the announcement jointly published by the Company and
TACI dated 2nd August, 2021 and the circular of the Company dated 5th
October, 2021, on 2nd August, 2021, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Advance Growth Investments Limited (the
"Purchaser”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of TACI.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, subject to the fulfilment (or
waiver where applicable) of the conditions, (i) the Purchaser shall acquire
and the Company shall procure its direct wholly-owned subsidiary (“BVI
Holdco") to sell the entire issued share capital of a target company (“Target
Company") (which shall in turn own all the ordinary shares of Dan Form
(Hong Kong) Limited); and (ii) any shareholder’s loan due to the BVI
Holdco by the Target Company shall be assigned by the BVI Holdco to the
Purchaser (the “Transaction”). The consideration for the Transaction shall
be HK$1,080,000,000, and shall be payable by the Purchaser to the BVI
Holdco (or its nominee(s)) upon completion by way of electronic transfer
(or such other method as agreed by the Purchaser and the Company in
writing).

As TACI is the substantial shareholder of the Company, it is a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
therefore the Transaction constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company.

Employees

As at 31st December, 2021, the Group employed 30 (2020: 29) persons,
all (2020: all) were employed in Hong Kong. The Group maintains a
policy of paying competitive remuneration packages and employees are
also rewarded on performance related basis including salary and bonus.
Details of the Directors" and employees’ emoluments in the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2021 are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details of the remuneration policy of the
Directors are set out in the “Remuneration Committee” section contained in
the Corporate Governance Report on page 21.

In addition to basic salaries, employees in Hong Kong are provided with
medical insurance and some of them are included under a defined
contribution provident fund scheme and mandatory provident fund scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's largest
and the five largest customers were approximately 15% and 49% of the
Group's revenue respectively, and the aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group's largest and the five largest suppliers were approximately 67%
and 93% of the Group's purchases respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders, which to
the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares, had a beneficial interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 31st December, 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's shares.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 12 to 32.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

=ED

TO THE MEMBERS OF ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asiasec Properties
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) set out on pages 54 to 163, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
December, 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key audit matter
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Valuation of investment properties
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We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant judgments and estimations associated with
determining the fair value.
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As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties which
represent commercial, residential and carparks located in
Hong Kong and the People's Republic of China carried
at HK$1,329,370,000 as at 31st December, 2021.
During the year ended 31st December, 2021, a loss from
change in fair value of the Group's investment properties
of HK$25,939,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

EREZBAREMETIZEB LA ERERNEE ([
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All of the Group's investment properties are measured at
fair value with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent and qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer").
The valuation depends on certain significant assumptions and
key inputs that involve management's judgments, including
term vyield, revisionary yield and market unit rent.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

EMRERPRERRBTERERISE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAERFHEIREMER 2 {EZRF B

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

0 FHERTRAD Z BSE D - RE N RFEIMNL

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

«  ERFEEMAEEBIENRTTE  METS KRR  HE
Pk 2 E2RR - MEMAZBARAGRHEE 2
AR

. Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and
methodology, the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

© HETERBZDERBRRZEEN + R

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions to industry norms; and

© RERMEMEDSNANE - EBLBRERBEZER
Kmig8iE - FHEEEE MR ATERA 2 TR HARK
B2 BB -

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
adopted by management and the Valuer by comparing
them, on a sample basis, to entity-specific information
and market data based on our knowledge of the
property markets.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Sze On Tat.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong 23rd March, 2022
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FeRaR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
B —E_——Ff —H=F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
% —ECTF
2021 2020
B E F#T FHET
NOTES HKS$000 HK$000
A Revenue 5a 38,166 51,251
HAplA Other income 6 17,781 32,366
H o hizn Other gains 7 967 428
& — B A R 2 B8 Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 8 (1,467,958) -
Ao k= Rent and rates (1,257) (1,350)
BFEEB Building management fees (6,948) (6,940)
REKA(BEEZHE) Staff costs
(including directors’ emoluments) (12,516) (14,592)
e K sH Depreciation and amortisation (172) (100)
HEIERRE Repairs and maintenance (935) (967)
Hih Rz Other expenses (15,373) (8,080)
Rt ATEHE B EIEIEE 2 RE - Operating (loss) profit before
HEFREANREMER SR T A impairment losses under expected
Z AR EEZEEH credit loss model, net of reversal and
(B8 ) A change in fair value of investment
properties and financial instruments (1,448,245) 52,016
REREMEZ R REBE Loss from change in fair value of
E) v Eria investment properties 16 (25,939) (32,635)
TRHEEEERE ZRE - Impairment losses under expected
SRR credit loss model, net of reversal (74.370) (4,551)
FRBEREANBEREZ Net (decrease) increase in fair value
TRIBEZRAREE of financial assets at fair value
OB )38 AN through profit or loss (15,272) 412
1 (18 )= A Operating (loss) profit (1,563,826) 15,242
FE(RE S A E) 2 518 Share of loss of associates (907) (69,029)
MR Al 1R Loss before taxation (1,564,733) (53,787)
FREHEH (2 ) Income tax credit (expense) 9 1,681 (2,863)
REEEE Loss for the year 10 (1,563,052) (56,650)
2l BN
HK cents HK cents
BRERE Loss per share

HK Basic 13 (125.98) (4.57)
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FeESREMZAKRER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
—EB-—%F —ToTF
2021 2020
FET FET
HKS000 HK8'000
REFEE Loss for the year (1,563,052) (56,650)
Hih e mEk=(ER) Other comprehensive income (expense):
BER T BB D E 1% ftem that will not be reclassified subsequently
ZIEA - to profit or loss:
FREMEEERERAAEE Change in fair value of equity instrument
BREZBMATAZ AREE at fair value through other
=) comprehensive income (797) (5,248)
BETE RIRE B AT DA E 1R 7 Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
ZIHEA - profit or loss:
KERE R Currency translation differences 1,986 2,730
REFHMEEKR(ER) Other comprehensive income (expense)
RIS for the year, net of tax 1,189 (2,518)

AEEEHERER Total comprehensive expense for the year (1,561,863) (59,168)




56 l””””’ ™ T —

GeMBERAE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
R-E-_—FF+—H=+—H at 31st December, 2021
k- - et 3 —E-TE
2021 2020
k=g FET T
NOTES HKS000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBDRE Non-current assets
Y - B K& E Property, plant and equipment 15 1,269 927
"EMH Investment properties 16 1,329,370 1,354,293
RERE RN Z Interests in associates 17 - 2,556,436
FEWE K Loan receivables 21 111,592 110,009
FRERRARBEREY Financial assets at fair value through

TEIEE profit or loss 18 43,116 39,296
FREMEEmEERAREERE Y Equity instrument at fair value through

RATA other comprehensive income 19 32,660 33,457
(e Club memberships 4,261 4,261

1,522,268 4,098,679
REEE Current assets
R 5 R E M pEW IR - Trade and other receivables,

TR RiES prepayments and deposits 20 37,693 34,645
FEWE K Loan receivables 21 64,737 139,159
FBRBRRANBERIEZ Financial assets at fair value through

TEEE profit or loss 18 42,814 61,866
JEUTES: & A BIBR 5K Amounts due from associates 28 - 23,209
AIER B AT 1S Income tax recoverable 3,961 769
ReRBEE Cash and cash equivalents 22 119,853 186,175

269,058 445,823

HEE Total assets 1,791,326 4,544,502
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FeMBERRAE(E) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
R-E-_—FF+—H=+—H at 31st December, 2021
=5 ZECTF
2021 2020
s FHET FET
NOTES HK$’000 HKZ000
a2 EQUITY
[N Share capital 23 681,899 681,899
Ei Reserves 923,522 3,664,020
wEa Total equity 1,605,421 4,345,919
af\ LIABILITIES
FREBDAR Non-current liability
EEHEAE Deferred tax liabilities 24 163,708 166,849
mENA R Current liabilities
FERRIEREREA Creditors and accruals 25 22,155 25,855
FESFT1SHE Income tax payable 42 5,879
22,197 31,734
Ham Total liabilities 185,905 198,583
HESRAR Total equity and liabilities 1,791,326 4,544,502

FERFESAEEF 163 AZEAMERERENRZ
T —F- A+ -HREECRALRKRET

% WH MIEEREERSE

and are signed on its behalf by:

FRiE HRi
Patrick Lee Seng Wei Edwin Lo King Yau
BF EFE
Director Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 163 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23rd March, 2022
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ReERERR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
B r - E - —fFF = H=F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
#® 0 ER
2.3 EftGE EfRMH e 1] ] REARH ana
Investment Property
Share  revaluation  revaluation Exchange Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total
AL TiET TET &L &L AL
HKg000 HKg000 HKg000 HKg000 HKg000 HK$000
R-E-FE-F—H  Atlstlanuary, 2020 681,899 28,651 78922 (8834) 3655951 4436589
rEEER Loss for the year - - - - (56,650) (56,650)

BREME A Change in fair value of equity
RRABEREZRA  instrument at fair value
TAZAAEEEE  though other

comprehensive income - (5,248) - - - (5,248)

HEAEEE Currency translation differences - - - 2,730 - 2730
REEEMRE(ER)  Other comprehensive (expense)

Wiz income for the year - (5,248) - 2,730 - (2,518)
REERE(EM)KEE  Total comprehensive (expense)

fak income for the year - (5248) - 2,730 (56,650) (59,168)
SNBE-E-hE Dividend relating to 2019 (note 14)

ReArzz4) - - - - (31,026) (31,026)
5 R sF R D Repurchase and cancelation of

(Hiit23) shares (note 23) - - - - (476) (476)
g e 3 At 31t December, 2020

+=A=+-H 681,899 23,403 78922 (6,104) 3,567,799 4345919
TEEBR Loss for the year = = = = (1563052)  (1,563,052)
FRAMANR Change in fair value of equity

ROABEREZRA  instrument at fair value

TAZRAEEEE  thiough other

comprehensive income - (797) - - - (797)

BERERE Currency translation differences - - - 1,986 - 1,986
REEHW2E(ER)  Other comprehensive (expense)

Wiz income for the year - (797) - 1,986 - 1,189
REE2E(ER) Total comprehensive (expense)

vk income for the year = (797) - 1,986 (1563052)  (1,561,863)
SATRRIREHE14)  Specia diidend (note 14) - - - - (1178635  (1,178635)

W% At 315t December, 2021
+-A=t-H 681,899 22,606 78,922 (4118) 826,112 1,605,421
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TRMEERAT B —55R 59
HeleibE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
ottt —ETF
2021 2020
FEIT T
HK$000 HK8'000
BEEEY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BR T ATE R Loss before taxation (1,564,733) (53,787)
PR Adjustments for:

M - BERZRBENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 172 100

HIE H e Net exchange gain (967) (428)

TBHEEEERE 2 RE - Impairment loss under expected credit loss

Narki=)ex:c| model, net of reversal 74,370 4,551

KREREMEZ AAEBE Loss from change in fair value of investment

HE)EE properties 25,939 32,635

HE—RRBAR &R Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 1,467,958 -

FEL B & R R E R Share of loss of associates 907 69,029

RITHEMA Bank interest income (935) (2,115)

BRAEHA Loan interest income (13,158) (23,913)

EWER 2 IFEEIMEE) Gain on non-substantial modification of

Wz a loan receivable - (4,844)

BRBREARBEREZ Net decrease (increase) in fair value

TREEZAAEE of financial assets at fair value through
FR A (450) profit or loss 15,272 (412)
2R B E A FE UG IE 2 K S U Interest income from other receivables (237) (220)
REFEBERRAAEE Interest income from financial assets
BRIR 2 & RUE EE 2 H B A at fair value through profit or loss (3.242) -
EEECEHRIZ Operating cash flows before working

EEBHEM capital changes 1,346 20,596
R 5 R H A EUEIE - Increase in trade and other receivables,

TES R IR S 180 prepayments and deposits (10,010) (21,206)
PR FIE N et B R AN O ) Increase (decrease) in creditors and accruals 8,446 (6,669)
RAREEFB 2 HER Cash used in operations (218) (7,279)
ERBEBE Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (11,148) (4,286)
ARBERBZHERE NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (11,366) (11,565)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

HEeEReRBR(R)

HE=E=—F+=f=+—ALFE

k- -t 3 —E-TF
2021 2020
Pt FHT FET
NOTE HKS000 HK$000
BREXE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEFAREREAREE Purchase of financial assets
BRIBZ & REE at fair value through profit or loss - (100,750)
T Loan advanced - (57,941)
BEWX BB REE Purchases of property, plant and
equipment (515) (20)
BURBBEBRIBRIR AR EE Interest received from financial assets
BRI 2 & RAVEEE Z S at fair value through profit or loss 2,489 -
PNEE VNG5 Repayment from associates 80,280 67,020
BUCREEE AR E Dividends received from associates - 65,215
B E RS Loan interest received 17,543 28,757
BB Loan repaid 2,000 23,000
BRI TR Bank interest received 881 2,115
B UK B Bt FE UK IE 2 A1 S Interest received from other receivables 237 220
RELHE—HHBARZ Net cash inflow from disposal of
WEFMA a subsidiary 8 1,020,645 -
RERBEHZRESBE NET CASH FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES 1,123,560 27,616
ME R FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BEAIARE Dividend paid 14 (1,178,635) (31,026)
i WNCIbEEN Repayment to associates - (17,236)
(5] s AN E 3K RO AL Repurchase and cancellation of shares - (476)
ARMEEBCER2E CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (1,178,635) (48,738)
ReRBE&EE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
WD B CASH EQUIVALENTS (66,441) (32,687)
REMZHER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
B&sE AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 186,175 217,031
SMERmEWS EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
4 4 RATE CHANGES 119 1,831
REXRZHER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Rea%E AT THE END OF THE YEAR 119,853 186,175
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Asiasec Properties Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Its parent is Autobest Holdings
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) and its ultimate holding
company is Allied Group Limited (“AGL") (incorporated in Hong Kong and
listed on the Stock Exchange). The address of the registered office which
is also principal place of business of the Company is disclosed in the
"Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are property investment (including by way of
equity investment as details set out in note 19), property leasing and estate
management. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1st January, 2021 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had
no material impact on the Group's financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments3
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June, 2021!

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)3

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies?®
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction?

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use2

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
20202

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2022.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2023.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

2w =

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
Stock Exchange.

The management has, at the time of approving the consolidated financial
statements, a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16"), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use
in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” (“HKAS 36").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are transacted at
fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in net assets of the
associate other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest
in an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or
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Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in an
amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group's performance
completed to date, the Group recognises revenue in the amount to which
the Group has the right to invoice.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application HKFRS 16 or arising from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's ordinary course of
business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components, the
Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
("HKFRS 15") to allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease component
on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part of the
original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease modifications,
including lease incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9") and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition of ownership
interest of a property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
buildings components, unless allocation cannot be made reliably.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

71

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,

less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling

and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is

located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by

the terms and conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and measured

under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter

of its estimated useful life and the lease term. The Group presents right-of-

use assets, if any, in “property, plant and equipment”, the same line item

within which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if

they were owned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures
the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of
exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using
the initial discount rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the property,
the relevant property revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.



DRBEARAT — - —FFR

IFEMBHRRMEGE)

BE—E=—— =1 —AILEE

3. %ﬁé,ﬁﬁ% WMRZRBEAEREE
SRR (®)

P33 F

DHIBE AR ERERFHAES
BRASRIEAIBE R RETRUEE RS

LWEER

R - BE R E

RBEHR  A"EEEHNEERERFHZY
% BELREHREE  AEEEE A AP
FETREEELTRERRE - WMLREMNHRE
PR - QAT HEREE < I E S5 - AEER
EEBRNREE(E) -

WE -~ BB MR B TR D SRR E R fEE o
TeefER At AR £ @ BIREESHAEE
EfMBREELEVZTKESHE -

ERARSELEMZBER - ARIEEEA N
BUSER BN EERE S IRGEFARE
B AIBEIEGREENR N RSELEN
HE - WY B EER - EAREEM
BORECELETHREELFE LA ZATRE S

B WHHEEREReELE TR EAS T
B2 BREEEI TR o

ARESERAABERDERAKEBEELR
=% - HEEREER - AERARKRERIER
BATRAIR R ITIRNEHRRIRE - AR KRR E Al
M5 E D BEZFEA R RRR SRR
RABZEBE(FRTELEMNSERR -

" 75

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units, including
the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Group's ordinary course of
business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that
at initial application of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designed and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

(i)  Equity instrument designated as at FVTOCI

Investment in equity instrument at FVTOCI is subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investment, and will continue to be held in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Dividends from the investment in equity instrument recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “revenue” line item in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the “net increase
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss
("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade receivables and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, cash and cash equivalents
and loan receivables) which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

83

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument's external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,

e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap

prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or

economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease

in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results

of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,

economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has
a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (jii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on an individual
basis taking into consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic information.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group
has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual cash flows are
renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets (continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group
assesses whether the revised terms result in a substantial modification
from original terms taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees
paid net of any fees received, and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial asset.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do not result in
derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant financial assets will
be calculated at the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial assets' original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial assets and are amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment
to the carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at
the date of modification.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including creditors are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised
as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income”.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from loss before taxation because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through sale,
which is always presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from certain investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the Directors have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in determining the
deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. The Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is subject to income taxes on
the fair value changes of the investment properties on disposal.

As at 31st December, 2021, the carrying amount of deferred tax
on investment properties is amounted to HK$146,774,000 (2020:
HK$151,264,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. The determination of the
fair value involves certain assumptions of market conditions which are set
out in notes 16 and 17.

In relying on the valuation report, the management have exercised their
judgment and are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of
the current market conditions. Whilst the Group considers valuations of
the Group's investment properties are the best estimates, the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in greater market volatility depending on
how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve which have led to
higher degree of uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the current
year. Changes to these assumptions, including the potential risk of any
unexpected incidents as a result of change in macroeconomic environment,
travel restrictions implemented by many countries, increased complexity
in international trade tensions geopolitics, changes in policy direction and/
or mortgage requirements, or other unexpected incidents would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair values of investment properties (continued)

As at 31st December, 2021, the carrying amount of the Group's
investment properties is HK$1,329,370,000 (2020: HK$1,354,293,000).
As at disposal date 28th October, 2021, the major non-current assets
of the associates represent investment properties in Hong Kong
amounting to HK$7,489,360,000 (2020: HK$7,546,760,000) of which
HK$2,629,453,000 (2020: HK$2,645,087,000) was attributable to the
Group.

Notes 16 and 17 provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of these assets.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31st December, 2021, certain of the Group's financial assets
amounting to HK$75,776,000 (2020: HK$72,753,000) are measured at
fair value with fair value being determined by using valuation techniques
and/or based on significant unobservable inputs. Judgment and estimation
are required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the
relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors
could result in material adjustments to the fair value of these instruments.
Information about fair value measurement of these financial instruments
are set out in notes 18, 19 and 30(c).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision of ECL for loan receivables and related interest and
other receivables

The Group determines the ECL for loan receivables and related interest and
other receivables based on probability of default and loss given default for
each individual loan as each of them have different loss patterns.

In determining the ECL, the Group engages the Valuer to perform the
calculation of ECL taking into account on each of the borrowers and their
guarantor's background, repayment history of their loans and forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. The management of the Company works closely
with the Valuer to determine the appropriate default rate and loss given
default rate. At every reporting date, the probability of default and loss given
default are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. Due to greater
financial uncertainty triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
increased the expected loss rates in the current year as there is higher
risk that a prolonged pandemic could led to increased credit default rates.
As at 31st December, 2021, the carrying amount of loan receivables
and related interest and other receivables is HK$178,519,000 (2020:
HK$258,290,000), net of ECL of HK$79,843,000 (2020: HK$5,473,000).
Information about the ECL and the Group's loan receivables and other
receivables is disclosed in note 30(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

5a. Revenue and Segment Information

-5 —ECEF
2021 2020
F#&IT BT
HK$°000 HK$000

KREMENETEEE Rental income from investment properties
WA that is fixed 31,304 44421
VMEEEE Estate management fees 5,362 5,330

REFEBEMEEKGRAREE Dividend income from equity instrument

BRIE 2 IR T AR B at FVTOCI 1,500 1,500
38,166 51,251

MEBEENRAR —BEEAAER - AEER
BENERMN XGEE M ERSD SR ELERSE
1SR AR EERENRA - REBEEBEAEE
BRI ZEN - BERKZEZWEEAREE
HWYHEERE - RBESU B WEEE 155K
ERZBEI—FR-ZEZF+_A=+—H
WA REBENEERECMBHEIDERTZEHE
FOEF

ARBNPTEECDHRAR/ZDNEERKE -
HITEERRARBENYEEERMEEE AR
—2ENE - WIRI AR BN BRI BEER
At WEHEAREE 2B - ¥4 - BERAR
TEDEBRAAT

RZB-_—E+-A=1+—H BEAERK
RBEEEZCREE  FREMEEKRR
AEEREZBRATAEREBRERIN - fIRE)
MpZEARLFBE([HE]) ZERBEERES
Bl A& 1,272,334,000 7% 7t & 62,566,000 7% 7T ( =
T =T : 3,856,479,0005% 7T &% 59,438,000 7%
TL) c RAFE - EBRFPEMSHAKAS
Al A£36,951,000/8 7T X2 1,215,000 L ( —E =
4 : 50,020,0007% 7T % 1,231,00077T) °

D
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Revenue from estate management fees is recognised over time. The Group
applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 to recognise revenue in the
amount that the Group has the right to invoice based on the terms of the
relevant lease agreements in which the Group bills a fixed monthly amount
in advance. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price of estate
management services allocated to the remaining performance obligations as
at 31st December, 2021 and 2020 is not disclosed.

The executive directors of the Company have been identified as the chief
operating decision maker. The executive directors regard the Group's
business as a single operating segment, which is property leasing and estate
management and reviews financial information as a whole accordingly.
Therefore, no segment analysis of the Group's revenue, results, assets and
liabilities are presented.

As at 31st December, 2021, other than financial assets at FVTPL, equity
instrument at FVTOCI and loan receivables, the total of non-current assets
located in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") are
HK$1,272,334,000 and HK$62,566,000 (2020: HK$3,856,479,000
and HK$59,438,000) respectively. During the current year, the total
revenue derived from Hong Kong and the PRC are HK$36,951,000 and
HK$1,215,000 (2020: HK$50,020,000 and HK$1,231,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

5b. TEFEFZER

5b. Information About Major Customers

IEAREBBIAT0%A EHRRFHEEYSE  Revenue from customers relating to rents from investment properties of

HERENTPRANT

the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

kSt 3 TECTE
2021 2020
FHET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000

XFA Customer A 5,551 5,426

=FB Customer B 4,661 5,348

6. HAgA 6. Other Income

—Z-—5F —E T
2021 2020
FHET FET
HKS$000 HK$000

RITHBHA Bank interest income 935 2,115

BERAEBA Loan interest income 13,158 23913

BUR# BN (Fita) Government grants (Note a) (16) 1,175

R B E At FEUGRIE 2 FILS A Interest income from other receivables 237 220

REBBEREANBEREZ Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL

TRIEEZREWA 3,242 =

REFREERARZ Management fee income from intermediate

EERBERA holding company 144 -

ERER 2 FEL EES) Gain on non-substantial modification of
Weas (fiaEb) a loan receivable (Note b) - 4,844
Hity Others 81 99
17,781 32,366

Hiaz - Notes:

@ WNAEE INEFEBERTHREEEMNMHEIM] (@  During the current year, a penalty of government grants, amounted to HK$16,000
F T2 A B ey 3 2L 8 A 7R S A8 B BT A BE S in respect of COVID-19-related subsidies, which related to Employment Support
KA160008 L (Z - F « B BUT # B) Scheme was paid to Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (2020: receipt of
1,175,000/ 7T) ° government grants of HK$1,175,000).

(b) MRE-_ZTZ-_ZFEREINGY  NEBEAEKE (b)) Pursuant to an agreement entered in late 2020, the Group is entitled to receive

RABSZER  UHERABRTRBEEKE
RERRY - BRZREBEKER TG
BE)WE o BIBRE BIER @ ISR THEKE
AReETNEE R_T-_—FF+_A=+—
A - HAEEE T AR MERZRE -

a fee from a borrower and recognised a gain on non-substantial modification
of a loan receivable since the borrower modified the covenants of an existing
loan receivable. The modification do not constitute change in contractual cash
flows pursuant to the original contractual term. As at 31st December, 2021, the
remaining balance was included in other receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

7. Other Gains

% —ETF

2021 2020

FHET TET

HK$°000 HK3'000

JHRE S W e Net exchange gain 967 428

8. HWE—FMBARZER

RZZE_—FNA-H ARAREXZFHKE
BRAR([ARZ DN —HEEZ2ENB AR
T—1EE W 0 bA1,080,000,000/8 T AR(E
EERRANEE AR 2w (ZERENFAR
EREMZFLART)  LBBEEARRR—H
HEZRBEERNZEMB AR 2 2HMPEEITRA
ERRER - ZRHERZT=_—F+A=Z+N
HEK  REBRALHE—HWBRARZEER
1,467,958,000/8 LWt AR Z T = —F 2185 ©
ZHEZHBERBER - ZE-—FN\A-BARQ
AIEXLZ e NmRIT

8. Loss on Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 2nd August, 2021, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Tian An China
Investments Company Limited (“TACI"), to sell the Company's interests
in associates (such associates being private companies incorporated in
Hong Kong) through the disposal of the entire issued share capital and
shareholder's loan of an investment holding company, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, at the consideration of HK$1,080,000,000. The
transaction was completed on 28th October, 2021, and a loss on disposal
of a subsidiary of HK$1,467,958,000 was recognised and charged to the
profit or loss in 2021. Details of the disposal were disclosed in the joint
announcement of the Company and TACI dated 2nd August, 2021 and are
as follows:
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e MEERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
8. HE—FEMBARIZEE®) 8. Loss on Disposal of a Subsidiary (continued)
ZBRARZFEENHERNT The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal were as follows:
—T-—%F
+A=+N\R
28th October,
2021
&1
HK3'000
HERRE : Net assets disposed of:
REWE Investment properties 1,150
N Interests in associates 2,555,528
R 5 R Bt e kIR Trade and other receivables 16
AIER B FR1S 5 Income tax recoverable 124
RITFRRIRE Bank balances and cash 59,355
BEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (M
FERTRIE R fEt B Creditors and accruals (6,329)
XRE A NCIE A Amounts due to associates (57,071)
FEA R RIERR A RIBR SR Amount due to intermediate holding company (5,814)
HEFEE Net assets disposed of 2,546,958
& B Loss on disposal (1,467,958)
&S FTS 08 Proceeds on disposal 1,079,000
RAFEREHRSRE Cash consideration received in current year 1,080,000
EZRRERNRSRE Cash consideration for assignment of shareholders’ loans (1,000)
1,079,000
HEREEZBRERA : Net cash inflow arising on disposals:
RAFEWERRESRE Cash consideration received in current year 1,080,000
HEZRTFERRRS Bank balances and cash disposed of (59,355)

1,020,645
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

9. Income Tax (Credit) Expense

% —ETF
2021 2020
FEIT T#ET
HK$°000 HK8'000
BBFTEH Hong Kong Profits Tax
REE Current year 2,148 7,129
BB Over provision in prior years (154) (214)
1,994 6,915
EIERIR (H7t24) Deferred taxation (note 24) (3.675) (4,052)
RNEZAEH () X B Income tax (credit) expense for the year (1,681) 2,863

R-ZZE—N\F=A=+—H FBLFgRB_
T EHRBEUSE]) (B7HRIMEOER(TERD) -
BEHEMAFFEHESE - ZERRZT—/\F
A+ NBEIKAERE  UWRBBTFIBKA
AR EMRFIFIEHESET - HFEERHE
EEERNE2E BB TN ’R8.25%EE + mid
B2 E & B ITA S T AR 16.5% /M - TRHE M
A I RIS 70 11 2 A% A B2 (B B8 A0 Vi ) 5 2 28 DA
16.50% ) A — Tt AT

RIEPE D ERMSERE(REMRSRE] M
ISR EEIRIES)  REMEFER - BHARF
B BB A R TR R A25% ©

On 21st March, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (“Bill") which introduces
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28th
March, 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

9. Income Tax (Credit) Expense (continued)

The income tax (credit) expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss

B2 BRI - before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

—B-—fF —ToFE

2021 2020

FET FET

HK$°000 HK8'000

B Bl 5 18 Loss before taxation (1,564,733) (53,787)
REBEHME165% 2 2 F18  Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax of 16.5%

(ZZ =T : 16.5%) (2020: 16.5%) (258,181) (8,875)
NRMEK 2z & Effect of different tax rate 269 430
TR 2 2 B8 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax

7 purpose 259,458 2,051
IERTRMA Z TR & Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (3.083) (1,683)
FEIREE & A RlR N 2 IE 2 Tax effect of share of results of associates 150 11,390
BEFEERERE Overprovision in prior years (154) (214)
ARERTIAEIR 2 AT E Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 66 6
A BERERTIAGE Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

ZBiER 2 not recognised (2) (16)
BFEHR EREGE Income tax at recessionary rate - (165)
Hih Others (204) 61)
RNEZFEHGEN) T L Income tax (credit) expense for the year (1,681) 2,863
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
10. NEEEE 10. Loss for the Year
-5 —ECEF
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$000
RNEEFEEHR Loss for the year has been arrived
at after charging:
M - B LREBITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 172 100
2 SR IE 2 B (H15230(b)  Impairment allowance on trade receivable
(Bt AEMRAX)) (note 30(b) (included in other expenses)) 1,741 -
e kAMmER Salaries and other costs 12,230 14,290
RONRERGTEI 3R Retirement benefits scheme contributions 286 302
EENAEH(PEESHE) Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 12,516 14,592
EEHESWAZIREYZED Direct operating expenses of investment
BEEEEER properties that generated rental income 10,744 8,827
WERELEHSWAZIREMER Direct operating expenses of investment
HEEEER properties that did not generate rental income 816 330

ZERRT B & Auditor's remuneration 1,273 1,258
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FeMBHRMEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
11. EEMS 11. Directors’ Emoluments
ENEENTIA(—E-_FF : 760)BZE2M4%  The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2020: seven)
I Directors were as follows:
—E-—%F
2021
e/
RHER BRI
Hitig# RIS
Salaries/ Retirement
EEW&  service fees FIETEL benefits
Directors’ and other Discretionary scheme @
fees benefits bonuses contributions Total
FET FET TET TET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BITEE Executive Directors
FRE Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 325 355 - 690
THE Lee Shu Yin 10 2,275 1,525 18 3,828
HR Edwin Lo King Yau 10 - - - 10
g4 Tao Tsan Sang 10 218 280 20 528
40 2,818 2,160 38 5,056

PBERZHTESME I EENEEEIEARRAT  The Executive Director's emoluments shown above were for their services

ENSETE Y in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.
BIFHTEE Independent
Non-Executive Directors

PR Li Chak Hung 10 118 - - 128

R Choi Kin Man 10 92 - - 102

BB Lisa Yang Lai Sum 10 92 - - 102
30 302 - - 332

FRBR B EITESME T 2N EIES  The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
RRRZEFZ R for their services as directors of the Company.

FCk Total 5,388
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FeMBHRMEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
11. EE8e @) 11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
—TCTHE
2020
e/
MR8 K RRTRA
H izl BEES
Salaries/ Retirement
TEED service fees HETEAL benefits
Directors' and other  Discretionary scheme st
fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
FAT FHET FET FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BITEE Executive Directors
FRE Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 325 405 - 740
£ Lee Shu Yin 10 27275 2,042 18 4,345
HR Edwin Lo King Yau 10 - - - 10
g4 Tao Tsan Sang 10 218 341 20 589
40 2,818 2,788 38 5,684

B RZHTEEMES T 2R REESIEARAF  The Executive Director's emoluments shown above were for their services

RAREEE 2 R - in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.
BIEHRTEER Independent
Non-Executive Directors

TR Li Chak Hung 10 118 - - 128

HRER Choi Kin Man 10 92 - - 102

o) 523 Lisa Yang Lai Sum 10 92 - - 102
30 302 - - 332

ERMBR B FITESHE T 2N EIES  The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
RNRFZEE 2 kT - for their services as directors of the Company.

et Total 6,016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei and Mr. Lee Shu Yin perform the function of
the chairman and chief executive of the Company respectively and their
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by the
chairman and chief executive.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments in the years ended 31st
December, 2021 and 2020.

12. Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, there
are two (2020: two) Directors whose emoluments are included in note 11
above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three) individuals
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021 are as follows:

% —E-TF

2021 2020

F#EiT FAET

HKS000 HK$000

e REMER] Salaries and other benefits 1,985 2,108
HEERME RS Performance related incentive payments 167 151
RONEAFTEI R Retirement benefits scheme contributions 54 436

2,206 2,695
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

12. EEBE®) 12. Employees’ Emoluments (continued)
ZEANLZME T The emoluments of the individual are within the following bands:
—E_—F§ —ECTF
2021 2020
ER®E REZH
Number of Number of
employees employees
07T — 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 3

REE 2 BB RIR IR 1T S # K T & & 487
SERARESNRE ZRREE - REMFA -
AEEWEM AL FKSEA L ERERD
AREERBSEMAREEEIFHEREERES
E B 2 $RE o

13. FAREE

KRR E(E 2 BIREARE R IR N5 8T
g

The remuneration policies of the Group are based on the prevailing
remuneration level in the market and the performance of respective group
companies and individuals employees. During both years, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or a compensation for loss of
office as a director.

13. Loss Per Share

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

—E—f —ETF
2021 2020
FETT FHET
HK$°000 HK3'000
iR Loss
R ESREREEZ Loss for the year attributable to owners of
RABRREEARFERE the Company for the purpose of

basic loss per share (1,563,052) (56,650)
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RS MBERRMEE(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
13. SIREE®) 13. Loss Per Share (continued)
-5 —ECEF
2021 2020
F F
‘000 ‘000
B® Number of shares
At E SRR E AR B E 2 EimAR Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Ik ER for the purpose of basic loss per share 1,240,669 1,240,802

METESRERNBEZ LBEBRAMEFSEF - The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
HIE—ZT T+ -_A=+—BEBEMEHAN loss per share has been adjusted for repurchase and cancellation of shares
BHDEIEAE - ER=ZE=—FER_ZT=_ZF for the year ended 31st December, 2020. No diluted loss per share for
ERNE B ETEIINBEL @ - At =2  both 2021 and 2020 were presented as there were no potential ordinary
T—FERT_TFE > WREEYEREE  shares in issue for both 2021 and 2020.

&8 -
14. K2 14. Dividend
—B—fF —T-TF
2021 2020
FHET FET
HKS000 HK8'000
REENERARZER : Dividend recognised as distributions
during the year:
ENZZE-—F2RRIRES A special dividend for 2021 paid of
BR0.9SBTT(ZE_TF ¢ HK$0.95 (2020: An interim dividend
BN NFEZRHRE (in lieu of a final dividend) for 2019 paid of
(RERHRRR) REAR2.5%81(0) HK2.5 cents) per share 1,178,635 31,026

EEERATEBREBE_FT_—4F+_H The Board of Directors has resolved not to declare any interim dividend for
=T—BIEZFHRE(ZE_ZTF : &) - the year ended 31st December, 2021 (2020: nil).



110

™

REMBRRMEGR)
HE=E=—F+=f=+—ALFE

15. W% ~ BB M

Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

HELH
RESEY
Leasehold BOZRME RHRKE RE
land and Office Furniture Motor #at
buildings  equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
FET FET FET FHET FHET
HK$000 HK8000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B&{E cosT
RZT=ZTF—H—H At 1st January, 2020 965 2,371 16,258 379 19,973
T ERE T Currency translation difference - 1 1 - 2
BE Additions - 20 - - 20
g Written-off - (54) - - (54)
R-ZE_TF At 31st December, 2020
+ZA=+—-H 965 2,338 16,259 379 19,941
(BB E R Currency translation difference - 1 1 - 2
BE Additions - - 215 300 515
Ga Written-off - (13) - - (13)
W-E——&F At 31st December, 2021
+=A=+—~ 965 2,326 16,475 679 20,445
e DEPRECIATION
RZZZTF—H—H At 1st January, 2020 256 2,099 16,232 379 18,966
W ERE R Currency translation difference - 1 1 - 2
AEFFHR Provided for the year 18 76 6 - 100
iRk Eliminated from written-off - (54) - - (54)
N—ZE-ZF At 31st December, 2020
+ZA=+—H 274 2,122 16,239 379 19,014
BB E AR Currency translation difference - 1 1 - 2
REFER Provided for the year 18 75 39 40 172
I Eliminated from written-off = (12) - - (12)
R-ZE——& At 31st December, 2021
+=-A=+—H 292 2,186 16,279 419 19,176
IRE{E CARRYING VALUES
NZE-—&F At 31st December, 2021
+ZA=+—H 673 140 196 260 1,269
R-Z—FF At 31st December, 2020
+=A=+—AH 691 216 20 = 927
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ALEEBAYME BERRBZITENEEEMR
AIRERNBERELA T FRTE

HE 30 KRS
Leasehold land and buildings

WAZRE

Office equipment

RREE
Furniture and fixtures

e

Motor vehicles

16. HEMF

AEERBELEAELANTAIMNASHTRE
FEVE  BEVENESS  HERIGHES
R—ENF(ZEZZF : —ZEF) WEARE
HEEMNEHECREEAAR T FANRIRE
TE=F(ZZTFF  ZE=F) I o IAFRAE
MATEEEREERE  ARZEHEENEES
MIHEB I °

HEANTEERREBERN,SEEFER
EHRBEZMENEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line method after taking into account of their estimated residual
values at the following rates per annum:

BRREHEEZFR  K=1+FEh+F
Over the shorter of term of the lease, or 30 to 50 years

20%
20%
20%

16. Investment Properties

The Group leases out various residential properties, commercial properties
and carparks under operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The
leases typically run for an initial period of one to six years (2020: one to
six years), with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial period for
two to three years (2020: two to three years) held by lessees only. Majority
of the lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend.

The lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee's
option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.
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16. Investment Properties (continued)

-5 —ECEF
2021 2020
FEIT TFET
HK$°000 HK8'000
AREE FAIR VALUE

NEA]) At the beginning of the year 1,354,293 1,383,647
EERERE Currency translation difference 2,166 3,281
& Disposal (1,150) -

AR EBEEFRD Net decrease in fair value

RN R recognised in profit or loss (25.939) (32,635)

RER At the end of the year 1,329,370 1,354,293

AREBEZBEMER S -_—ER T -FT&
+ZA=+—BZRAAREMETHEAERETM
R 2 AR E BB A AR AR E BT
fH1E -

TEfbE I Y A A EEN - MEQRENRER
BREBMAR - RERENEZ A1 BECH
B OBRBASESEERREA  UEeE
W -

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 3 1st December,
2021 and 2020 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on the respective dates by Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited, a valuer not
connected with the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use. The fair values of certain investment
properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued operating
lease income to avoid double counting.

-5 —EEF
2021 2020
FET TFET
HK$°000 HK$000

WEMELR Investment properties are located in:
BE Hong Kong 1,267,420 1,295,470
2] PRC 61,950 58,823
1,329,370 1,354,293
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for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

16. Investment Properties (continued)

113

The following table gives information about how the fair values of the
major investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the

e degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.
ARRE fEERER

FRARGERENE A FESH ELORSBALMRREZRAE

Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESmiBR2Y Relationship of unobservable

held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value

(IR EE 2 e S E= REE(RHERE) BAURE(ZRITHEDE RAENRMRERSE TR HBREENENeSHALER

Residential properties Level 3 Investment method (termand YR EBIRAM R ATEANMER)B15%ZE25% (ZF= The

in Hong Kong

reversionary approach)

IRBHA:
The key inputs are:

(1) Mk
Term yield;

EHlEE R
Reversionary yield; and

@

(3) EREuMmEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

T 1 200E2.5%) ©

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from
comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be received, of 1.5% to 2.5%
(2020: 2% 0 2.5%).

ERURE(ZRIML BN EEEUTHHSNARE
fri{E) A2%%3% (ZZ=TF : 2250%3%) ©
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 2% to 3% (2020: 2.25% to 3%).

MSEMR S RERTSTHBMALR - WZ R EAL
ffENEE  MERIER - DR DR - FOTHELH
ENFNEBTHREAVETETHREALET (222
TE  BYHREALETEETHREASIAET) «
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is from around HK$32
sqft/month to HK$45 sq.ft/month (2020: HK$32.5 sq.ft/
month to HK$51 sqft/month).

The increase in the term yield would
result in a decrease in fair value.

EEREEMENEEHAL BE
T

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

TERLELHENEERDLBE
-

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

16. Investment Properties (continued)

AREE fEERER
FREFBERRR A FESR ELRRSHALAAEZRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERERRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
WSS PAETE ES E= REA(BHERE) BERAEX(ZRITHENZRABURBRERS T BARSENENSEHRALEE
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand W ER ) 78 B UL A d B 7 M AT A M) MigR ) 2% 3 75% TR o
in Hong Kong reversionary approach) (ZB=ZF 1 25%%4%) °
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
TELEA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) T8
Term yield;

Q) EEkaEX R
Reversionary yield; and

() EpEuMEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 2% to 3.75%
(2020: 2.5% to 4%).

ERRREZRITHBNFNFEENTHHSNARE
I {E)A2.5%24.25% (ZZ=F4F : 30%45%) °
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 2.5% to 4.25% (2020: 3% to 4.5%).

s BH S HERTHTHLRMELER - 2B HEA
EtMERIEE - BRIER - MEANIRE - THTHE
e N FHBTHRERIAELEETAREA 38T
(ZB-25: BYHREAUSELEGTAREA140
BT

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilites.
The range of average market unit rent is from around HK$14
sqft/month to HK$135 sqft/month (2020: HK$14.5 sqft/
month to HK$140 sq.ft/month).

EEREENENEEHRA BE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

mHENAEHENS SR L BE
2me

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
16. IREWV=(5) 16. Investment Properties (continued)

AREE fEERER

FREFBERRR A FESR ErORSBALRREZMAE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERERRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
fr A2 B E= REA(BHERE) EAREZ(ZRITLBNERBENRRGERATUR BRREXHENE SR AL ERE
Caparks in Hong Kong ~~ Level 3 Investment method (termand  BVRRER A RORRTE M AT AL MO R ) R4.25% (ZB2FE : TH e

reversionary approach)

IE2EA:
The key inputs are:

(1) T8
Term yield;

Q) EEkaEX R
Reversionary yield; and

() EpEuMEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

200%4.250%)°

Term vyield, taking into account of yield generated from
comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be received, of 4.25% (2020:
2% t0 4.25%).

ERRREZRITHBNFNFEENTHHSNARE
RLATE) R4.75% (B B4 : 2.5%F4.75%) «
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 4.75% (2020: 2.5% to 4.75%).

MBS REE TS A LRI - WE B
EAEE  MBRERMNRE - TOmEELALNEA
370087 (ZF=F4F : 98 A22008LE38008T) ©
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage and facilities. The average market unit
rent is around HK$3,700/month (2020: around HK$2,200/
month to HK$3,800/month)

The increase in the term yield would
result in a decrease in fair value.

EEREZNENEEHRL BE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

HENAEHENS SR LA BE
2me

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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BE-—F-—f1-A=f—HLFE

16. IEWZ(5#)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

16. Investment Properties (continued)

AREE fEERER
FREFBERRR A FESR ELRRSHALAAEZRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERERRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
ST ES S E= REA(BHERE) RERRER(ZRHTHBNE AL RRRIRATUR BARSENENEEH AL EE
Residential properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~ BYR RN ARV BETE 1EFREE AL RO ) 21 2500 2.25% (= T o
in PRC reversionary approach) ZTE 1 1250%25%) °
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
TELEA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) T8
Term yield;

Q) EEkaEX R
Reversionary yield; and

() EpEuMEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 1.25% to
2.25% (2020: 1.25% to 2.5%).

ERRAE(ZRIML BN EREUTSHENARE
&) B1.75%22.75% (ZE=FF : 1.75%%3%) -
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 1.75% to 2.75% (2020: 1.75% to 3%).

MBS REE TS A LRI - WE B
R EE - MBRIER - WEA DR - FOTHELH
ENFHBTRREAI2ITAREKEGTAREA205TA
R¥ (Z222F : GYIRBAOTAREZ BT IAE
R210TAR%) -

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property and faciliies. The
range of average market unit rent is from around RMB127
sq.m./month to RMB205 sq.m./month (2020: RMB130
sq.m./month to RMB210 sq.m./month).

EEREZNENEEHRL BE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

HENAEHENS SR LA BE
2me

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.



TRBEERAT —T-—FFH ”””h""’”'”” 117
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE —E——fFf =+ —HIEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
16. IREWV=(5) 16. Investment Properties (continued)
AREE fEERER
FRARGRRENR A TESH ELRRSHALAAEZRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERERRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
PR EL B E= REA(BHERE) BRRER(ZERITLENXRAEARRRERATUR BARSENENSEHALEE
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand BB AMBE HFTELE MG R) A35% (Z22FF: TH-
in PRC reversionary approach) 3.500) ©
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
TERE: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) T8
Term yield;

Q) EEkaEX R
Reversionary yield; and

() EpEuMEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 3.5% (2020:
3.50).

ERRREZRITHBNFNFEENTHHSNARE
frifE) A4 (ZZZFF : 4%) -

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 4% (2020: 4%).

MBS REE TS A LRI - WE B
{ERRE - MERER - MEANRS - PETSENH
SNTHBTHREAIBTARE (22225 : K
BA1BTARY) -

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is around RMB125
sqm./month (2020: RMB135 sq.m./month).

EEREZNENEEHRL BE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

HENAEHENS SR LA BE
2me

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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FEMEEERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE-—FE-——FF - H=+—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
17. REtE AR 2 Em 17. Interests in Associates
-5 —ECEF
2021 2020
FETT FAEIT
HK$’000 HKZ'000
BEZKA - 3EE™ Cost of investments, unlisted - 223,816
FER BTS2 w7 & Share of post-acquisition profits and
Hih2mEUE - other comprehensive income,
Bri% B1& net of dividends received - 2,332,620
- 2,556,436

MAEE  KAAREXALZH—MEE2EKB2A  Durng the year, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
R T—MEEWE  HE—MHEBAF - M with a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of TAC, to disposal of the subsidiary
ZAREEHE AR 2R - HE—KME2AE  which included interests in associates. Details of the disposal of a subsidiary
Z BERIFFEAIEES o is set out in note 8.

FEMERNRNR_ZE-_—FN_ZT_FTF+_F Details of the principal associates as at 31st December, 2021 and 2020
=T —BZERFEHRMEE33(0) ° are set out in note 33(b).
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RS MBERRMEE(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
17. REtE R A 2w () 17. Interests in Associates (continued)
BEABRELATICUESHEBE Summarised financial information of material associate
Zeta Estates Limited Zeta Estates Limited
RHER
-5
+A=+)\H —T-TF
As at
disposal date
28/10/2021 2020
FEIT FET
HKS$000 HK$000
MENEE Current assets 1,306,864 1,409,550
ERBEE Non-current assets 6,692,544 6,771,053
BB E Current liabilities (174,510) (260,074)
SERBEE Non-current liabilities (1,172,635) (1,220,931)
FBEREESRE The above amounts of assets and
BREATAR : liabilities include the following:
HE Y Investment properties 6,691,360 6,769,760
ReRkAEEE Cash and cash equivalents 20,259 157,474
WA Revenue 291,174 580,240
BEMEZ DR EBEZE) Change in fair value of investment properties (74,600) (221,060)
rEEEBEEREEER Loss and total comprehensive expense
ks for the year (47,335) (184,147)
FAZNEE [ 2R 5 Zeta Estates Limited Dividends from Zeta Estates Limited
s =N during the year - 40,260
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FEMBERERMEGE)
BE-F—— 5+ = F=1—HILEE
17. REEE R R 2 R (E)

EXHELRZMBERHBE(R)

Zeta Estates Limited(#&)

Lt AR E B AR S B IS R R HE R 2 Zeta
Estates Limited#& # < BREIMEEBRAAT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

17. Interests in Associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of material associate
(continued)

Zeta Estates Limited (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Zeta Estates Limited recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

RHER
—E-—%
+A=+/\H ZT-TF
As at
disposal date
28th October,

2021 2020
FEIT FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
Zeta Estates Limited 2 j5 & & Net assets of Zeta Estates Limited 6,652,263 6,699,598
A& BAZeta Estates Limited Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Zeta
2w REBE(REEHEE# Estates Limited (Proportion of the Group's
T Eh1n £33.33%) ownership interest of 33.330%) 2,217,421 2,233,199

ERIFEEAR 2B E N R 2 ERER -

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:

RER
—E"—%F
+A=+\H —TCoTF
As at
disposal date
28th October,

2021 2020
FET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
REBRIERFEZ The Group's share of total comprehensive
2HEME(ER)EHE income (expense) for the year 14,871 (7,647)
REBNZERENR 2 Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
AR AE interests in these associates 338,107 323,237

REEE-_ZS-_—F+A-+N\H BEQAAZ
FTEFRHEEAMNRBTEIREMELSTS
7,489,360,000/8 JL(ZZ = : 7,546,760,000
W T) » Hr2,629,453,00008 T ( Z T 8 4F -
2,645,087,000/8 70 ) SRR ANEE - TRIZHEEH
RIBAR BT 28 A B AREERB 2 A R)EK
ﬁ%%ZQﬁFfﬁ&Qmﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁ% 52 KT
(BF—Z2=4) IRBEEATBERZEZLHA
DM’E&’A/L.:FTEJE °

As at disposal date 28th October, 2021, the major non-current assets
of the associates represent investment properties in Hong Kong
amounting to HK$7,489,360,000 (2020: HK$7,546,760,000) of which
HK$2,629,453,000 (2020: HK$2,645,087,000) was attributable to the
Group. The following table shows the valuation techniques and inputs used
in the determination of fair values for investment properties of associates
as well as fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurement are
categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which significant inputs
used in the fair value measurements is observable.
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& B35 80 RO R (48) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B EF—E - — 1 = =4 —HIEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
17. REGE R 2w () 17. Interests in Associates (continued)
LRRE fEERER
FRARBERENR A FESH ELORSBALNRRENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESmiBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the associates hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
(B 2 BRI E=R REE(RHERE) RIZZ-FTA-T/\RRBREX(ERIALEMER HBREENENeSHALER
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand SR LARBMRRE R FUREVE BRSO BE A NE  THE -
in Hong Kong reversionary approach) H)R225%Z25% (ZBZF4F : 2250%F2.5%)°
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
FTE2YA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) kX
Term yield;

(2) EEkEE R
Reversionary yield; and

() EREuAmEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 2.25% to
2.5% at 28th October, 2021 (2020: 2.25% to 2.5%).

RIBZ-EF AT\ BEENGEE(ZEH AL RDEE
FEBNTSEERARBATHER2TS%ED (ZF
£ 1 27500%3%) «

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market

7—7

rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 2.75% to 3% at 28th October, 2021 (2020:
2.75% to 3%).

KRB+ AT \BmGENES ERRTELEY
REE - YZRIMEALMENRE - ERER - H%EX
R FATSELEENFOETHREA2NETE
SYAREANTAT (CF-FF : §TIREAVELES
FHREAR0%T) °

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is HK$29 sq.ft/month
to HK$47 sq.ft/month at 28th October, 2021 (2020: HK$29
sq.ft/month to HK$50 sq.ft./month).

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

TEEGRENENERALARE
-

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in increase in fair value.
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Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
17. Bt AR 2B (8) 17. Interests in Associates (continued)
ARRE fEERER
FRARGERENR A FESH EiRRBHALRENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESmEBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the associates  hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
IR EBZ IR E=R REA(RHESE) REB_—S+A-T\RRANEX(ZRATHENER RARSZNHENSERALEE
Industrial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand SR LARBMRRE R FUREVEBIRA SR LA NS TH -
in Hong Kong feversionary approach) &) BLT5%ZE3% (ZEZFF : 275%%F3.5%) °
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
TEZYA comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) ke
Term yield;

(2) EEkEE R
Reversionary yield; and

() EREuMmEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 2.75% to 3%
at 28th October, 2021 (2020: 2.75% to 3.5%).

RIB- S+ AT \REBUEE(ZREALENED
EREUMSHSNARBLME) A3.25%F35% (ZF=
T : 3250F4%) °

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3.25% to 3.5% at 28th October, 2021 (2020:
3.25% to 4%).

KRB+ AT \BmGELES ERRTHNLEY
REE - YZRIMEALMENRE - MERER  HEX
R - FATSELEENFOETIREA14ETE
BYAREAER (22224 : BTHRBABSETE
BYIREAIIRL) °

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is HK$14 sq.ft./
month to HK$32 sq.ft/month at 28th October, 2021 (2020:
HK$8.5 sqft/month to HK$33 sqft/month).

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

BN ENERALARE
-

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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REMBHRERMMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
17. REtE R A 2w () 17. Interests in Associates (continued)

ARRE EERER

FREREERANR A FESH ErORSBALRRENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EEREBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the associates  hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value

fIREBZ EENR £=R BEENBE-RETSTER, R-F_-FtA-T\RETIRZHEERETSTE SYHIRNHERRLASERLL

Residential properties Level 3 BONERS BZRINERS BT ARNEERREEEN 72669678 BEEM -
in Hong Kong Direct comparison approach - JE233,285% (=22 %4 1 27, 714B L 230905570 &

based on market observable HEURBIEEDRORR -
transactions of similar properties. ~ Selling prices per sq.ft based on market observable The increase in the selling price per
transactions of similar properties is HK$26,696 to HK$33,285 sq.ft would result in an increase in

TE28A: at 28th October, 2021 (2020: HK$27,714 to HK$30,905) fair value.
The key input is: per sqft on gross floor area basis and adjusted to reflect the

conditions of the subject properties.
BYARZHER
Selling price per sqft

18. BBBERWANEBERIEZ /M 18. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
-5 —EEF
2021 2020
TET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ELTIREES Unlisted investment funds 85,930 101,162

REEBNATET Analysed for reporting purpose as:

JEMEBEE Non-current assets 43,116 39,296
MENEE Current assets 42,814 61,866
85,930 101,162

FiE Bt R EHA R R BETIER - AREMEFE Al of the above investments are stated at fair value and details of the fair
HEFBEETIRNTE30(c) ° value measurements are set out in note 30(c).
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FEMBHEME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

19. FBEMEEKFZAAMBER 19. Equity Instrument at Fair Value through Other

BZRATE Comprehensive Income
—E_—f ZEZTF
2021 2020
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FREMEEBEIEAREEERE 2 Equity instrument at FVTOCI (Note a)
AT A (fiita) 32,660 33,457

Brat - Notes:

@) ZEHEEAEETIBREYERENIELT AT (@  The amount represents the Group's 5% (2020: 5%) equity interest in an unlisted
H)5%( —Z = T4 : 500) PAAkE o company, which is principally engaged in property investment.

(b) B LEREHURAEETI  BRENNH (b)) The above investment is stated at fair value and details of the fair value
#30(c) ° measurements are set out in note 30(c).

20. X NREMEIWFIA « BRERFK  20. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and

Nir& Deposits
k-l 3 —TTF
2021 2020
FETT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
R EWFIE Trade receivables 17,068 18,120
HAtb FEUGRIA Other receivables 18,922 14,693
BT RS Prepayments and deposits 1,703 1,832

37,693 34,645
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

20. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and
Deposits (continued)

Trade receivables represent rental receivable which are receivable on the
presentation of debit notes. Rental income is billed in advance at month-
end. The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 days to its tenant.
The aging of these trade receivables of the Group, net of provisions and in
accordance with the revenue recognition dates, is as follows:

-5 —ETEF

2021 2020

FET T

HK$°000 HK8'000

30HA Within 30 days 13,951 14,697
31HZ60H 31-60 days 1,520 819
91HZE120H 91-120 days 1,137 968
121HZE180H 121-180 days 460 1,636
17,068 18,120

HE-_ZT-—F+-_A=+—H  XEEXFE
WHRIEREHBELEBA  REBEEREBD
wHR - HAABRM S /44,8580008 L (—_F =%
4 : 3,423,000/87T) ° LB EAFRTER 1,597,000
BIL(ZZE=ZF : 2,604,000/ 70) B#EEIO0K =k
BEREHE - W TEREAELD  BEABEER
BEARERONKRBEERR - B—EBA
BHBRE  RZT=_—F+=_A=+—HE
EEFER1,741,0008 T (ZE=5F « &) -

As at 31st December, 2021, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$4,858,000
(2020: HK$3,423,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out
of the past due balances, HK$1,597,000 (2020: HK$2,604,000) has
been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default since
the balances are mainly with long term credit customers with good credit
quality. An impairment allowance of HK$1,741,000 (2020: Nil) was made
at 31st December, 2021 on a debtor which is having financial difficulty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

20. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and
Deposits (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

—EB-—5 —EEE

2021 2020

TET FAET

HKS$000 HK$000

ARE(TARE D Renminbi (“RMB") 26 90
E(lEx]) United States Dollars (“USD") 4,284 8,229
4,310 8,319

IH a?ﬁﬁ%%féﬁztoaooo,%n(fzf?E
4,190,000 7T ) - ﬂ 8 A5 (T T F
5%) + MARER(ER

. & Hﬁ(ff SN

RBEER  NREBERXFHLIE(ZZTZZF : 5
&) BKRER  BEFMEHRL75%E15%(=F
ZEF  475%F15%) c R f:—iJr_
A=+—B24@(ZZ=ZF : 5(@) BKRER
ERIE(ZZ_ZF : @) AEERREER
2E(ZE=FF 21I)ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ&*ﬁﬁ%&11l
(ZZ=ZF : 2f) AEEE R EER YR
——$+Hi_7_m¢+ A(ZZ=%F:
—F=ZRAE_ZT-_MF+—A)3H EH Tﬁ

As at 31st December, 2021, included in other receivables are balance of
HK$4,043,000 (2020: HK$4,190,000) which bears interest of 5% (2020:
5%) and is repayable on demand.

21. Loan Receivables

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has loan receivables from
four (2020: five) parties which bear fixed interest rate ranging from
4.75% to 15% (2020: 4.75% to 15%) per annum. In respect of four
(2020: five) loan receivables as at 31st December, 2021, one (2020:
one) is unsecured and guaranteed and two (2020: two) are secured and
guaranteed and one (2020: two) are unsecured and unguaranteed, and
have maturity dates ranging from October 2021 to November 2024 (2020:
March 2021 to November 2024) and are analysed as follows:

ZZDT
:g:_ﬁ — 7 —% ﬂf
2021 2020
FET FET
HKS000 HK8'000
REE 2 EBERBE The Group's loan receivable comprise:
PR (H157) Note receivables (Note) 174,390 174,390
B RE Less: Impairment (75.326) (4152)
99,064 170,238
H bR E R Other loan receivables 79,146 79,941
B BB Less: Impairment (1,881) (1,011)
77,265 78,930
176,329 249,168
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

21. Loan Receivables (continued)

—E_—F§ —TTF
2021 2020
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000

HE2MANMEL DT : Analysed for reporting purpose as:
B EE Non-current assets 111,592 110,009
MENEE Current assets 64,737 139,159
176,329 249,168

Mzt - Note:

EREEPEMRAASEREERITARBCERE
% - —R&FA77,5000008 T EREBHBEEEER
Z LB A RFEEAR AR (TFBEDOHEAR
REZZT-—NF+—ABTYAAEERE  Z2HBER
- WAFTBEREER - BERBE 554,000
(ZZ=Z4 : 432,000/87T) °

S —RE N E R $ 58 4596,890,000/8 7T B — B LT
ARI(TBITADZHBRARIR =2 —/\F+ %1
AEERFE  ZZEHBTANMBRBZE TRHIE
WA —BAEAABRERERAER - ARBEITARRE
E-T=—F+ARHRERASMERERFE - A
EZERERENW BT HMET5272,0008T(=F
ZZ4F : 37200008 ) st ARBEZZ - —F+=A
=t+—HB - ZREZREFBEEEBER = —/\F+AH
T—BARARZAM

IR EEEEEHESREBLAGERNE
FEFHEE ERERFE AR AR AMET AT
HETE o RERT A BRI HTEE30(0b) °

The note receivables included two loan notes which was subscribed by the Group at
the notes issuance date. A loan note in the amount of HK$77,500,000 was issued by a
subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK"), a listed subsidiary of AGL, in November
2019 and held by the Group, which was unsecured and guaranteed by SHK. Impairment
allowance in the amount of HK$54,000 (2020: HK$432,000) has been made.

The other loan note in the amount of HK$96,890,000 was issued by a subsidiary of an
independent listed company (“Issuer”) in October 2018 and held by the Group, which
was secured by certain shares of the Issuer's subsidiaries and an individual personal
guarantor. The loan note was in default as the Issuer failed to repay both the principal
amount and loan interest receivable upon maturity in October 2021, leading to the
recognition of the impairment in the amount of HK$75,272,000 (2020: HK$3,720,000)
as at 31st December, 2021. Details of the subscription of the note was disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 11th October, 2018.

The expected credit loss was determined by the Directors, based on a
valuation performed by an independent and qualified professional valuer,
Norton Appraisal Holdings Limited. Details of impairment assessment are
set out in note 30(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

21. Loan Receivables (continued)

As at 31st December, 2021, the carrying amount of note and other loan
receivables amounting to HK$64,737,000 (2020: HK$137,225,000)
are pledged with collaterals such as debentures (2020: debentures). The
Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals in the absence of
default by the borrower. There has not been any significant changes in the
quality of the collateral held for the note and other loan receivables. The
Group has not recognised a loss allowance for the note and other loan
receivables as a result of these collaterals, except for a note receivable with
a principal amount of HK$96,890,000, which has default in repayment
of both principal and interest receivable during the year ended 31st
December, 2021.

BTHEBEETE 2SI - "EE 2 The Group's loan receivables that are denominated in currencies other than
W E IR TP B ELITIFHE the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:
-5 —ECEF
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
ETT usD 99,064 170,238
22. HekReFE 22. Cash and Cash Equivalents
% —E-TF
2021 2020
FHET FET
HKS000 HK8'000
ReRREGEFE : Cash and cash equivalents:
RITERKRRE Cash at bank and in hand 74,339 42,423
RHIRTTIF R Short-term bank deposits with
(RR=EAAEIE) original maturity within three months 45,514 143,752
mEREnRBRIBRER Cash and cash equivalents for consolidated
REFEDHT statement of cash flows analysis 119,853 186,175

AT —F+—A=+—H B KREeEEEE
ZBRITHISAERBE0.28%FE2.03%(Z =T 4F ¢
0.39%Z2.43%) °

As at 31st December, 2021, the cash and cash equivalents carry prevailing
market rates ranging from 0.28% to 2.03% (2020: 0.39% to 2.43%) per
annum.
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22. Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

-5 —ETEF
2021 2020
FETT FAEIT
HK$000 HKE000
AR # RMB 22 19
e usD 23,423 9,764
23,445 9,783

23. AR 23. Share Capital
B8y FEr

Number of
shares HK$'000
BEITRER Issued and fully paid:

RZZE-_ZTF—H—H At Tst January, 2020 1,241,054,945 681,899
518 M s SRR (9 Repurchase and cancellation of shares (386,000) -
R-_ZTE-_TFE+—_A=+—8H" At 31st December, 2020, 1st January, 2021

—F—F-A—-HEK and 31st December, 2021

—E—F+=-A=+—8© 1,240,668,945 681,899

REE_Z_ZF+_A=1T—HILFE &R
RIE R ATOBEES < BRI T

During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the Company repurchased

its own ordinary shares through Stock Exchange as follows:

B R R#EE

BRBER (€ 3.1 PN:E-2:0))

Purchase price per share Aggregate

B R{EE consideration paid

B i E A BR {7 81 B Highest Lowest (before expenses)

Number of ordinary BT & FET

EIfgA 7 Month of repurchase shares repurchased HKS$ HKS$ HK$'000
—E-TFHA May 2020 200,000 1.25 1.22 245
—E-FFERA May 2020 186,000 1.22 1.22 227

A L@z TR EWEHE - ARRZHBLR
ARBEZZ - —F+_A=T—HILEFENR
BEE  LEFBEBLEMARAZ EHES °

The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchased. None of the
Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's
listed securities during the year ended 3 1st December, 2021.
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24. Deferred Tax Liabilities

The followings are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements

g ¢ thereon during the current and prior years:
TR ER
REARIER
Land
appreciation
AREE tax and Hfth wit
Fair value other tax Other Total
T T T TH#ET
HK3'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK3'000
RZZEZEF—-H—H At 1st January, 2020 155,842 13,515 736 170,093
REANBB= () (Credit) charge to profit or loss
e (4,578) 29 497 (4,052)
BERE AT Currency translation difference - 808 - 808
RZE_TF At 31st December, 2020
+=—A=+—H 151,264 14,352 1,233 166,849
RENB R (fE) (Credit) charge to profit or loss
kR (4,490) 732 83 (3,675)
e - - M) M
M(E R E R Currency translation difference - 535 - 555
RIE-—4F At 31st December, 2021
+=A=+—H 146,774 15,619 1,315 163,708

RMEER - AEBHEAR 7K R 2 &
B AT B E 18 54,209,000 T (ZE T F :
3,823,000/ 7T) ° HREETE AR &N - B
RIBLETHIBEE ©

ERER T ZHIAER

ZEARBATIARE R AERIRE o

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$4,209,000 (2020: HK$3,823,000) available to offset
against future assessable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

These unused tax losses have no expiry date.
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RS MBERRMEE(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
25. ERRIERERTER 25. Creditors and Accruals
ZEBZ—-%F T T
2021 2020
TFET FET
HKS000 HK$000
R 5 ERTFIE Trade creditors 371 193
H b fE 518 Other creditors 6,185 9,561
HPE® Tenants deposits 12,244 12,778
[EEtEEER Accrued operating expenses 3,355 3,323
22,155 25,855
AEEz R GEMNFIBRER A ZREIT The ageing of the trade creditors of the Group in accordance with invoice
date is as follows:
% T T
2021 2020
FET FET
HKS000 HK$000
30HA Within 30 days 356 193
12084 Over 120 days 15 -

371 193
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26. RETHEANE 26. Operating Leases Commitments

NEEYEME WA E31,304,0008T(=ZFE=F  Property rental income earned during the year was HK$3 1,304,000 (2020:

4 44,421,000870) - HEMELAESHEEH  HKE44,421,000). The properties held had committed leases mainly

—E(=FT=_FTF: —FEAF)  PREHAR - running for the next one to four years (2020: one to five years). At the end

RNEBBAERT RS CEBER RK KD 2 of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future minimum

BERFAT lease payments as lessor under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

-5 —ETEF
2021 2020
F#T FET
HKS$000 HK$000

ATRAEEHE R Undiscounted fixed lease payments

FERAEFAT receivables on leases are as follows:

R—F 2K Within one year 26,283 40,128
A In the second year 18,055 22,572
RE=F In the third year 10,385 14,329
REME In the fourth year 264 9,824
RERF In the fifth year - 264

54,987 87,117
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BE=F=—F1 A=+ —AULFE
27. RKERET S

AEE 2 BRIBBERING BEPIE L2 ERH
FETEI(TBRRAGE ) RREBRES RN
—TETFE AR zaEe s BI([@Ees
gl)  ZFHEzEERANEE cEENRE
B BAXRATEZGERESHEE - £8ESD
AHEIRS ZAT - RABEERARGEIKEZRER
BEBEE2ERZRINGTEREERESHE)
FIER_ZETZFE+ - A - BRUARMABZE
BEF2EBREDE -

HRBEETERE  EERAEEZHERA
RBREFABMH S 25% @ 18 H/1%E IR 430,000
BIL(ZE=ZF : 30,00087T) ©

BERAFENESHKRREERAEESE AR
BEERFEZ5%HK - WEREEZE2NAE
EER 2 AR E R AR HB SR IGT S - bR
ZHEFEAHBAEE 2 BAHAEE - AR
MTRERAGFENEER — S - TFNBEERE
B UERZFRAGTEBE2NES  Aita=
T —F - ARBUHEBEERAKE - REE=
ZRFE+_HA=T—HIFEARN  UEEKE
MAEIRHARER - RREHKR - BESRH
BSORAETEI M ME  RA HRE B BT

RBE-_ZE-—F+-A=1+—BILFERN " &K
S BB I 2 BIREFET 84 5 & 286,000 7T
(ZZE -4 : 302,000/87C) °
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27. Retirement Benefit Plans

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme")
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme
or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, both employees’ and the Group's
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly relevant
income, with the mandatory cap of HK$30,000 (2020: HK$30,000).

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from the employees
and the Group at the rate of 5% of the employee’s basic salary. Where
there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by
the amount of forfeited contributions. The ORSO Scheme was cancelled
in January 2021 after the scheme members left the Group in 2020 and
no more scheme members were under the ORSO Scheme. During the
year ended 31st December, 2020, there was no forfeited contributions
used to set off contributions. At the end of the reporting period, forfeited
contribution, which arose upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme, is
zero.

During the year ended 31st December, 2021, the Group made
contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of HK$286,000 (2020:
HK$302,000).
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28. BEET R P N iE

RBEZZ-—F+-_A=+tHIFEAN &&

BEAMBEALZRSMEHRIAT

28. Related Parties Transactions and Balances

and balances with related parties as follows:

During the year ended 31st December, 2021, the Group had transactions

(a) FABEAZES : (a) Related party transactions:
—B-—fF —ToBE
2021 2020
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
REIERATR - BaRER Ultimate holding company, AGL, and
HKftE QA its subsidiaries
—AAEEKEHES — Rent, estate management and
MEEERERAER air-conditioning fees charged to the Group 929 1,163
— [N ER B OB A B 2 PR B — Internal audit service and management
ERENMARRBER information system service fee
charged to the Group 340 360
— [N SR B U ) AL B R — Sundry expenses charged to the Group 236 59
e sE s —HEMEAR— A subsidiary of AGL, SHK and
RERENE AR its subsidiaries
— REEBRERF S WA — Interest income earned by the Group 4,456 4,466
HREERAR] - R Kk Intermediate holding company, TACI, and
HKtE AR its subsidiary
— REEBRERF S WA — Interest income earned by the Group 1,554 779
— RSB RERE) B IR RS B A — Management fee income earned
by the Group 144 -
—AARE BRI EERT & — Management fee charged to the Group 2,300 2,100
— MRS E U A A B — Sundry expenses charged to the Group 1 1
BENR Associates
—REEBE KBRS — Dividend received by the Group - 65,215

(b) FEEEBARTMH

(b) Key management personnel compensation

TEERAEBNFMHFMEEEZEMEARI  The remuneration of key management is determined by the remuneration
M5B e mEE committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

RAFEENRENTARATEEEEBEAE - The remuneration paid and payable to the key management of the
HRE R 2 a1 e Company, who are the Directors, for the year is set out in note 11.
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28 Related Parties Transactions and Balances (continued)

(o BAmAHERSS (c) Related party balances
ZEBZ—-%F T T
2021 2020
FET &1
HK$°000 HK3'000
BEERAR  BAEER Ultimate holding company, AGL, and
HIE AR its subsidiaries
— H A FETRIE — Other payables
(BFF A MR 5RIE) (included in other creditors) 141 188
e Rz —ERE AR — A subsidiary of AGL, SHK and
FEE R HME AR its subsidiaries
— B ER — Loan receivable
(Bt ARBWERR) (H5ti) (included in loan receivables) (Note ) 77,500 77,500
— HoAth EIKRRIA — Other receivable
(BaF A fEHRIA) (included in other receivables) 574 574
REZERAR - KRR Intermediate holding company, TACI, and
HKTE R R its subsidiary
— B ER — Loan receivable
(Bt ARRWER) (4 5ti) (included in loan receivables) (Note i) 34,146 32,941
— HAth EIKRRIA — Other receivable
(BT AEALEWGRIA) (included in other receivables) 9,101 840
YN Associates
— H A FEYCRRIE — Other receivable - 23,209

REBEE_TE-_—k_ZTE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H

During the year ended 31st December, 2021 and 2020, the Group had

IF - AEEEGEEALZR G MERIT

FEATEE S SR B N BB A R 2 BRRG R E AR -
BN RARERER -

REZB-TF - BUREE R RRRERERA -
ENBIRBEENERYR - EFRR/ENK
ARBHRHRERRR T —EAREE - BD
BARYEE - BRBELARARRERBE_Z
TF T A=+ —HILFEZEEN -

BRTHE—HNBARERHEERARREZH —
REZRZENBARIN - S ESATRE - Lt
FAEE R 59 TR £ RIE R AREEE XL 5 S

BRARE X 5

transactions and balances with related parties as follows:

The amounts due to AGL and its subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand.

In 2020, the amounts due from associates were unsecured, interest free
and had no fixed repayment term. In the opinion of the Directors, the
amounts were expected to be recovered within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period and therefore were classified under current
assets. The amounts due from associates are fully settled during the year
ended 31st December, 2021.

Except for the disposal of a subsidiary to a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of TACI, intermediate holding company, as disclosed in note 8, none of
the above related party transactions constitutes a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined in the Listing Rules.
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28. Related Parties Transactions and Balances (continued)

() Related party balances (continued)

Notes:

(i) The loan receivable bears interest of 5.75% per annum, is unsecured, guaranteed,
repayable in November 2024 and is included in loan receivables.

(i)  The loan receivable bears interest of 4.75% per annum, is unsecured,
unguaranteed, repayable in June 2023 and is included in loan receivables.

29. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As a part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and repurchase of shares.
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30. ®@t T A 30. Financial Instruments
(a) £mMmIAZER (a) Categories of financial instruments
% —ECTF
2021 2020
FET FEr
HK$000 HK$'000
SMEE Financial assets
BRBESEARNEBEREZESMEE  Financal assets at FVTPL 85,930 101,162
FHREMEEPERA R EERE Equity instrument at FVTOCI
ZREART A 32,660 33,457
BBIERATTE eREE Financial assets at amortised cost 332,172 491,365
450,762 625,984
eRaR Financial liabilities
REBIHR ARG 2 At amortised cost 18,800 22,532

(b) MBEERBREREBRRBEK

AEBZIZSRTAGREBEBIERIKAN(EE
BREZEREE BBREMEEBSRAAE
EREZBATE  XHEUKFIA - HbREKER
B RRER  BEEEARERER  HeEkRe
HE RZENFE EEMREBEREFZ
T ZEEMITAFBRESMEHE - 2SR
TARMZREREER SRR (ONERR « FIRE
aREMERRR)  FERBRLREERR - T
XEFII AR EZERBR IR - ARBZER
BEENMEEZERRE - AR R RABIR
BUEE 2181 °

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include financial assets at FVTPL,
equity instrument at FVTOCI, trade receivables, other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from associates, cash and cash equivalents,
trade creditors, other creditors and tenants deposits. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of the Group
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group has trade receivables, other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade creditors that are denominated in foreign currencies
which are different from the functional currency of the respective group
entity and accordingly expose the Group to currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency exposure. However, the management monitors the related
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary
liabilities denominated in currency other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BE afR

Assets liabilities
-5 == —E_—F —ECTF
2021 2020 2021 2020
FETT FET FETT FEx
HKS000 HK3'000 HK$000 HK$000
ETT usb 126,771 188,231 - -
AR RMVIB 48 109 - _
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30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group's principal subsidiaries are operating in Hong Kong and their
transactions are mostly denominated and settled in HK$, USD and RMB.
As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Directors thus consider the Group's foreign
currency exposure is not significant. To the extent that the Group's revenue
and expenditure are not naturally matched in the same currency and to
the extent that there are timing differences between receipt and payment,
the Group will be exposed to foreign currency exchange gains and losses
arising from transactions in currencies other than its functional currency.

The Group mainly exposes to the currency of RMB.
Sensitivity analysis

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk due to RMB is considered not
significant to the Group and no sensitivity analysis is presented.
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30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk
The Group's fair value interest rate risk related primarily to loan receivables.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as its cash equivalents
and loan receivables which are subject to floating interest rate. The
Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy. However,
the Group closely monitors interest rate movements and will enter into
new banking facilities when favourable pricing opportunities arise. The
management monitors the Group's interest exposure and will consider
hedging interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group's change in interest rate is mainly attributable to its bank
balances which is considered not significant to the Group and no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

(i) Other price risk

The Group's unlisted equity securities are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk
in relation to these financial assets.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risks at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Other price risk (continued)
Equity instrument at FVTOCI

If the business enterprise value of the underlying equity securities has been
5% (2020: 5%) higher/lower while all other variables were held constant,
investment revaluation reserve at 31st December, 2021 would have
increased/decreased by HK$1,633,000 (2020: HK$1,673,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCI.

Financial assets at FVTPL

If equity prices were 5% (2020: 5%) higher/lower while all other
variables were held constant, loss before tax would decrease/increase by
HK$4,297,000 (2020: HK$5,058,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from potential losses result from
default on obligations by counterparties. The maximum exposure to the
Group is represented by the carrying amount of its financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade receivables consists of rental and estate management fees receivable
from tenants. Credit checks are carried out before commencement of
tenancies and on-going credit evaluation ensures any doubtful receivables
are provided for as required. The exposure to credit risk is limited because
the trade receivables are secured by tenant deposits. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced and
thus no loss allowance was recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Regarding the credit risk management policy on note receivables, the
Group assessments are based on the public subscription documents and
the public information published by its listed guarantors. For the credit risk
management policy on other loan receivables, the Group negotiates the
credit limits and terms of new grants and renewals of loans receivable
based on individual assessments of the background, financial strength
and collateral provided on the loans of each of the borrowers. The credit
limits and terms of the new grants or renewals of loans receivables are
approved by the directors of the lender subsidiaries on case-by-case basis.
As at 31st December, 2021, there are in total 2 (2020: 2) outstanding
note receivables issued by listed entities in Hong Kong and 2 debtors
(2020: 3 debtors) of outstanding other loan receivables, comprising private
companies in Hong Kong and a related party in the PRC.

The Group performs a credit quality review to provide early identification
of possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties regularly,
including financial information analysis, collateral revisions and interviews
with borrowers to update the credit risk of borrowers. The credit quality
review enables the Group to assess the potential loss as a result of the risk
to which it is exposed and take appropriate corrective actions.

The Group's note receivables are kept in the security broker account
and the repayment of interests and principals of note receivables are
directly debited in the security broker account when due. For the other
loan receivables, the Group billed in advance by the debit notes to the
borrowers. The Group performs ongoing monitoring on the note receivables
and loan receivables repayment and the finance department of the Group
is responsible for reporting to the Directors for any delay or default in
repayment of the note receivables and loan receivables by the issuer or the
borrower (as the case may be) upon maturity for further assessment of the
loan recoverability and formulation of plans for loan collection.

The internal audit department within the Group periodically conducts
internal control reviews and compliance checking over all aspects of credit
processes to ensure that the credit procedures are complied with and
sufficient controls are in place to mitigate credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group had a concentration of credit risk as the loan receivables are
advanced to a few independent third parties and related parties. As at
31st December, 2021, the loan receivables will be matured ranging from
November 2022 to November 2024 (2020: March 2021 to November
2024). Management had assessed the credit rating of the borrowers for
the secured and unsecured loan receivables of HK$176,329,000 (2020:
HK$249,168,000). During the year ended 31st December, 2021, there
is a default in repayment of note receivable with a principal amount of
HK$96,890,000 (2020: Nil) and the interest receivable of HK$3,391,000
(2020: Nil), all other loans interest have been settled in accordance with
agreement terms.

The Group assessed the loss allowances for other receivables with gross
carrying amounts of HK$21,558,000 (2020: HK$15,003,000) on 12m
ECL basis. The expected loss of other receivables are assessed individually,
taking into account the historical default experience and internal credit rating
of the debtors as well as forward-looking information, as appropriate. There
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group has no other significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

In addition, the Group reassesses the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
the 12m ECL for other financial assets at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. In this
regard, management of the Group considers that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has developed credit risk grading
to categorise exposures according to the degree of risk of default. The
Group uses publicly available financial information and its own historical
repayment records, or, where appropriate, engages the Valuer to rate its
major customers and debtors. The Group's exposure and the credit quality
of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.
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FEMERERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEF —FE——FFf - HF=F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

. BRI T R 30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) HMBEEEREBRRRBUERE) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
SEEBERREFEG (&) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
REBAREERBF R L BEATER - The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following
categories:
PIERE SRR Hti&mEE
Internal credit filiatt X 5B AR Other financial
rating Description Trade debtors assets
REER R G ERERBIEREELH RS EEEE - 1218 ATEAEE
RAEABHR AR ER BEERE &1
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
FER B A B E R IR 2EFEHEEEE - 2@ ANEREE
(ERERYSE AN BEERE 18
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
but usually settle in full not credit-impaired
(ed=3 R EIR MR E A BB /MR E R ZEEHEEEE - EHEPEEEE -
LEERBR=EIE M BEERE BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL — Llfetlme ECL -
credit risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
information developed internally or
external resources
JE5E BERBEEZEEZEERRE 2EFEHEEEE - 2 HFEBEEEE -
EERE EERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
FE8H BRI 2 AT AR B B A I I R £ K HIHE R FEIH e
REE N EER LB
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
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30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

145

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial

IRE#E RHEERE
Gross il
12(BA %21 carrying ECL
SHEBIESEETIR  AEBEHTR FHEHER amount provided
—E-—F Ptk External Internal 12m or FET FET
2021 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK$°000 HK3'000
BB TR £REE Financial assets at amortised costs
FEWE K
Loan receivables
RHBWEEREN—E e TEFA {9y 1218 A 77,500 54
FERF 2 B AR TEEMEE RS
Long-term note receivable Notes c, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL
from a subsidiary of a
major shareholder
RHERT—HRZR BisE d, f TiE A 1K fax 1216 A 34,146 =
ME AR TEEMEE RS
Long-term loan to a fellow Notes d, f N/A Low risk 12m ECL
subsidiary
RHRKEERAR—E MiEa e TiEA B8 > HEHEEEE 96,890 75,272
BME=H (EERE)
Short-term note receivable Notes a, e N/A Loss Lifetime ECL
from an independent third (credit-impaired)
party
REE ST — (B8 FMizE b, e TEF iy 1218 A 45,000 1,881
F=F TEEMEEE1E
Short-term loan to an Notes b, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL

independent third party
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
15 R MR Bt EFE () Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
IRE#E FHEs
Gross EiEEE
12(EA 21 carrying ECL
SMHBEETR ABEHTE BHEESR amount provided
—E-—%Ff P External Internal 12m or F#ET TFETT
2021 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK$'000  HK$'000
R P EWFIE 20 i A KRB 2 HITAHEEEE 13,951 =
Trade receivables N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
R S EWGRIA 20 TNEA R = HITE Al E B R 18 3,117 =
Trade receivables N/A Watch list Lifetime ECL
H b fE Y RIE 20 T3 A KRR 1218 A 18,167 2
TEEMEE 1R
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL
HAb el GRIA 20 NEA gz 2 HIFE s E R 18 3,391 2,634
(ZERE)
Other receivables N/A Loss Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
RITEN 22 N3 A KR k2 1218 A 119,836 =
TEEEEEs1E
Bank balances N/A Low risk 12m ECL
#5t Total 411,998 79,843
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FEMBERME () NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
30. T A 30. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) MEBERREEEHERBEGHE) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
15 R MR Bt EFE () Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
BREAE BHEE
Gross  fHiERE
1216 Ak 2851 carrying ECL
SNMEERTR  REMEERR BHEEEE amount provided
—E-THF FfaE External Internal 12m or FHET FHET
2020 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK8'000 HK8000

BRIMMEATIRZ £/EFE Financial assets at amortised costs

FEUE TR
Loan receivables
« REBEREBREN—E Mitce TiEF e 12188 77,500 432
FERR 2 —HNEAT SELEI ==
Long-term note receivable Notes ¢, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL

from a subsidiary of a
major shareholder

FEHERT —HRZE iz d, f TNEHA R 12187 32,941 -
)N TBHEEEE

+ Longterm loan to a fellow Notes d, f N/A Low risk 12m ECL
subsidiary
FEHEEEREN —E it a e TEF 1K B 1218 A 96,890 3,720
BNE=T TBHEE &S

»  Short-term note receivable Notes a, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL
from an independent third
party

« EHERT(EEL MiE b, e TiEF 1K B 1218 A 45,000 945
EF=5 TRHEEEE
Short-term loan to an Notes b, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL
independent third party
REE ST —EE izt d, e ER R 1218 A 2,000 66
F=F RHEEEE

»  Short-term loan to an Notes d, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL

independent third party



» IHHH’” "

FEMBEREMPE(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr—_E_—Ff _H=F—HAUILFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
30. &R T E @) 30. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) MEREEEBERBK(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
15 R MR Bt EFE () Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
IREAE TEEEE
Gross  [SEEE
1216 Ak 25 carrying ECL
SNMEERTR REMEENR BHEEEE amount provided
T T M5 External Internal 12m or FHET FEIT
2020 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK8'000 HK8000
R P EWGIE 20 i A KR B2 2 HIFE A E E R 1E 14,697 =
Trade receivables N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
R 5 EWGRIA 20 TNEA R 2 HITE Al S E R 1E 3,423 =
Trade receivables N/A Watch list Lifetime ECL
Hh fEURRIE 20 e A {liWE 121 A 15,003 310
TEEEEEE
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL
HRITIFH 22 i A {iWE 12{& A 186,158 -
TEEEEEE
Bank balances N/A Low risk 12m ECL
JEUSTES:  A BIBR SR 28 e A KR R 1216 A 23,209 =
TEEEEE1E
Amounts due from associates N/A Low risk 12m ECL

485t Total 496,821 5,473
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The note receivable is secured by certain shares of the borrower's subsidiaries and
an individual personal guarantor.

(b)  The loan is secured under a debenture incorporating second fixed and floating
charge over its undertaking, property and assets of the borrower and guaranteed by
an individual personal guarantor.

(c)  The note receivable is unsecured and guaranteed by a subsidiary of AGL, SHK.

(d)  Theloan is unsecured and unguaranteed.

(e)  The Group engaged independent external expert to perform ECL assessment on
the balances. The ECL is assessed by reference to the probability of default and loss
given default for the relevant credit rating grades published by external credit rating
agencies, and adjusted for forward-looking factors that are available.

(f)  The ECL assessment on the balances is performed by the management. The ECL
is assessed by reference to the probability of default and loss given default for
the relevant credit rating grades published by external credit rating agencies, and
adjusted for forward-looking factors that are available.

A debtor that is credit-impaired with an amount of approximately
HK$1,741,000 as at 31st December, 2021 (2020: Nil) was assessed
individually and an impairment allowance of HK$1,741,000 (2020: Nil)
was made on this debtor which is having financial difficulty.



150 ”””"’h’"””” Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2021

& R 35 4R RO R (48) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEr—_E_—Ff _H=F—HAUILFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

. R T A 30. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) MEBERREEEHERBEGHE) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

SE MR RAEFE(1E) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
TRAE BRI EFMEMEWFIENEER  The following tables show recondiliation of loss allowances that has been
.2 Ak - recognised for loan receivables and other receivables.

1287  RMAMEHGE

RHEEEER (EHmEE) 5t
Lifetime ECL
12mECL  (credit impaired) Total
TET TET THETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE_TF—H—H As at 1st January, 2020 925 - 925
RENEEREHTA Changes due to financial instruments
EEZE recognised during the year:
—ERERERSE — Impairment losses recognised 4484 - 4484
ELEFEE 2 New financial assets originated or
EREE purchased 67 - 67
b =R Exchange adjustments 3) - 3)
RZZE=ZF+=H As at 31st December, 2020
=3—E 5473 = 5473
RERNFEREHIA Changes due to financial instruments
EEZES recognised during the year:
—BERRBEERE — Impairment losses recognised 74,370 - 74,370
—M12EABHEERE - Tansfer from 12m ECL to credit-
EREEERE impaired (77,906) 77,906 -
T —%+=A As at 31st December, 2021

:‘T'— H 1,937 77,906 79,843
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The Group's financial liabilities (including trade creditors, other creditors and
tenant deposits) are repayable on demand.

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2021

2021
E— E® BER® @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FET FET FET FHT
HKS$000 HKS000 HK$°000 HK$000
BRBFE AR EERE  Financial assets at FVTPL
ZEREE - 42,814 43,116 85,930
FRAEMEEBEE LR Equity instrument at
BEEREBRATA FVTOCI - - 32,660 32,660
RZBZTF+=—A=+—RAZARBERS Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2020
—EoTE
2020
EF—R FEMH E=R #st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKE000 HKg'000
BBBFIL AR EERE  Financial assets at FVTPL
ZERAEE = 61,866 39,296 101,162
FREMEEMEIRZ AR Equity instrument at
BEREZRATA FvTOC - - 33,457 33,457

RAEFERN  WREE—HR BF_R/RE=ZRZ

fAl 2 F 5 o

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 in the current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used.)

Fair value as at
31st December,
- s 2
2021 200 SARERN HERTRIESH EEREBR2Y EORSHALRRECAR
SHEE FET F#r  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Financial assets HK$ 000 HKS000  hierarchy  and key inputs inputs inputs for fair value
ARRELAEREREL nsu 61,866 2R CRBERECEE AER ¥ li
SRARE S LTS Level 2 Quoted price provided by financil N/A N/A
& insftutions
Unlisted fund investrment
dlassified s financial
assets at FUTPL
AERRALEEREL 43,116 3929 =B CRMERE/RE HEETFE  NER R
SHAE I RS Level 3 REEBNRERZRENRE  NA N/A
& RZIR
Unlisted fund investment Quoted price provided by financial
classified s financial insttuions which considered net
assefs at FVTPL asset values of special purpose

vehicles derived from underlying
Investments
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

30. T A 30. Financial Instruments (continued)
(0 &MIAZARMBENEGE) (c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)
TIRZt-BeARRE
Fair value as at
31st December,
ZBI-f E°%F
2021 200 LARERN RERTRIESR EZRiERN EERRSBALRREZRE
SHRE FET ##r  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Financial assets HK$'000 HKS000  hierarchy  and key inputs inputs inputs for fair value
HERBBRMEANE 32,660 33457 2=h  BEERE RENRE(ZRITLENER AHUEENENEERNLER
BT EREEEL level 3 Assetbased approach. AENRBRERATRROAES TH-
RATE WARNBEEFEENREE)A
pEAd e G 1E2%A 27502325 (=525 F : 275%
Unlisted equity securiies The key inputs are: E3250) °
classified as equity Term yield, taking into account of yield ~ The increase in the term yield would
instrument at FVTOCI () BEE generated from comparable properties  resultin a decrease in fair value.

(i) Tem yield;

(i) EEhEE
(i) Reversionary yield;

(i) TAELRS : R
(i) Market unit rent; and

() BZ ERHTSR S AT
(v) Discount for lack of control and
lack of marketability

and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be
received, of 2.75% to 3.25% (2020:
2.75%10 3.25%).

BEURE(ZRITLBNENE
BT RARELTE) A
3250 %375% (2525 F 3250
F3750) -

Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3.25% to 3.75% (2020:
3.25% to 3.75%).

— w
s
=
B
e
=
i
=
8>
e
N
=
=
st
IS

o

The increase in the reversionary yield
would resultin a decrease in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

REeMIERERMEGE)
BE—F-—Ff - F=1—HILFE
30. @R T EE) 30. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

(0 &MIAZARMRENEHE) (9

T2AZ+-AZARRE

Fair value as at
31t December,
s S
2021 200 SRRERN HERTRIEZH ESRiBRN EERRSBALRREZRE
SHRE FET ##7r  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Financial assets HK$'000 HK§000  hierarchy  and key inputs inputs inputs for fair value
isENASRERTATL AL TRELAENENEERALRE
L TERIMEAAGENRE m Bl

ERER - MEAMIRSE - T
“WHM%WEREHSO“%T_E:
FAREA0EL(-2-35: §
YHREANELESTS RH
AT o

Market unit rent compares with direct
market comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property and facilities. The range of
average market unit rent is from around
HK$30 sq.ft/month to HK$170 sqft/
month (2020: HK$30 sq.ft/month to
HK$170 sqft /month).

R BHATARE  TE(Z R
frAHEEE) A2 (- F-F4
28%) °

Discount for lack of control and lack
of marketability, taking into account
median control premium, of 26.4%
(2020: 28%).

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair value.

ReBHAT R ANRENE
EYNAEETE -

The increase in the discount for lack of
control and lack of marketability would
resultin a decrease in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
assets

PHWB SRWBEB
BoRRE Rtt2@mkz
BEZ BaRE
EHRE EHEZRAIA

ZFkEH ZIk L
BEERE BFEHF
Unlisted Unlisted
fund equity
investment securities
classified classified
as financial as equity
assets at instrument at e
FVTPL FVTOCI Total
FET FET FEIT
HK§000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZE-ZF—-H—H As at 1st January, 2020 = 38,705 38,705
BE Purchased 38,750 = 38,750
PR 2 B Total gain in profit or loss 546 - 546
REA 2 E U 2 B E5E Total loss in other comprehensive - (5,248) (5,248)
income
R-_E-_ZEF+_A=+—H As at 31st December, 2020 39,296 33,457 72,753
Rigzmz el Total gain in profit or loss 3,820 — 3,820
REMEmkES 2 2 k18 Total loss in other comprehensive - (797) (797)
income
R-EBE-_—F+-_H=+—H As at 31st December, 2021 43,116 32,660 75,776

BERREE(ZE-2F - WaREB)RIEL
MESREMIE ETERERFN AR BEEKES
HEE  DRETAIEBBRERAABEREZS
MEERENIMEEEMEERRZAREE
BRIEZIRATANAABEZ]

EERRWBHRATALRE P BRR T AR
TREE;ATHAEMNEAEREAABEARK

ER

The total gain and loss (2020: gain and loss) represent fair value gain or
loss on unlisted fund investment and unlisted equity securities and are
included in “net increase in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL" and
“change in fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCI" respectively.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.
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ReEMBERERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021
31. ARE Xl ENES LR 31. Reconcdiliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing
Activities

TRAFMANEBREREEZBHBEES 85  The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from

HeMIERLEH REEKELANEERLES  financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities

MAARKE L REEAERGESIRESRBARFH  arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or

BAROMBEEBRELSTR - future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

FEfHEE
MR DFRR
Dividend Amounts due o
payable to associates Total
FET FET FET
HK3'000 HKZ'000 HK8'000
R-ZE-_ZTF—HF—H At st January, 2020 - 17,236 17,236
EEMRE Dividend declared 31,026 - 31,026
MERSIN Financing cash flows (31,026) (17,236) (48,262)
R-Z-_TF+_-_HF=+—H At 31st December, 2020 - - -
BEEMRE Dividend declared 1,178,635 - 1,178,635
BMERSIN Financing cash flows (1,178,635) - (1,178,635)

R-BE-_—F+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2021 - - -
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32. ANRBIF AR Kt

(@) HLFMBRAR

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Company

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

(@) Company’s Statement of Financial Position

32. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the

% —ETTF
2021 2020
FET BT
HKS$000 HK$000
HE ASSETS
ERBDEE Non-current assets
M - BE K Property, plant and equipment 406 226
REB AR ZZE Investments in subsidiaries 17,424 1,914
JE BT BB A B BR X Amounts due from subsidiaries 632,039 694,485
Az ess Club memberships 4,261 4,261
654,130 700,886
mENRE Current assets
TERTERK « e KA R FRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 887 977
AIER B FT{SFL Income tax recoverable 163 657
RekReFE Cash and cash equivalents 87,021 168,032
88,071 169,666
HEE Total assets 742,201 870,552
a2 EQUITY
& Share capital 681,899 681,899
fE# Reserves 18,719 157,324
700,618 839,223
=1 LIABILITIES
mEAR Current liabilities
FETERIE K FEET B A Creditors and accruals 16,886 4,100
FERTHI B A BIBR TR Amounts due to subsidiaries 24,697 27,229
HaR Total liabilities 41,583 31,329
BERRAR Total equity and liabilities 742,201 870,552

AARFBRARER-_E-_—_F=A=-+=H
CEEQRBRBETE  TETIHIESRRE
=2

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23rd March, 2022 and
are signed on its behalf by:

FriE HRH
Patrick Lee Seng Wei Edwin Lo King Yau
£ BE

Director Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

32. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the
Company (continued)

(b) Movement in the Company'’s reserves

RE&EF

Retained

profits

T

HK8'000

RZZE-_ZTF—H—H At st January, 2020 92,776
RNEF P HEW AR Total comprehensive income for the year 96,050
BA—Z—NF2RE(HHE14) Dividend relating to 2019 (Note 14) (31,026)
Bl & SRR AR (H7723) Repurchase and cancellation of shares (Note 23) (476)
R-ZE-_TF+_-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2020 157,324
REE 2 E WA Total comprehensive income for the year 1,040,030
FERIRR B (HTaE14) Special dividend (Note 14) (1,178,635)
R-—ZE-——F+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2021 18,719
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33. TEMBAR KL QT

BREEHAN  RABANRZB=—FR=
F+-A=+-—HEEBEEZTEN B AR  which operate in Hong Kong except otherwise indicated, are as follows:

BT

(a) FEMBAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

AlEEE 33. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

Z—=F  Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31st December, 2021 and 2020,

(a) Principal subsidiaries

FisREE AL
it/ s BRITRS BRRFENR Percentage of attributable equity directly
Place of Particular of BELRERRH s50RE
4 Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the held by the IERH
Name establishment paid up registered capital Company Group Principal activities
2021 2020 2021 2020
% Y% Y% Y%
TRBAERAR B 1BEER/ 1A - - 100 100 WERE
Asia Empire Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK§1 Property investment
DEABRRAT B 1000 52K /10000727 100 100 100 100 BiiEE
AsiaSec Finance Limited Hong Kong 1,000 Ordinary shares/HK$10,000 Financing
ERAHEREEARAR B WRERR 20T - - - 100 WERE
(Hit1) Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$20 Property investment
AsiaSec Project Management Limited
(Note 1)
SENZERARLA &% 300,000% &3,/ - - 100 100 WEER
AsiaSec Property Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 3000007370 Property management
300,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$300,000
BHRARRAT 30 1BCEER/ VAT - - 100 100 WxkE
Asiawell Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
BRREARRAA 30 WRERE/ 2% - - 100 100 WxkE
Citigrand Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Property investment
Creative Fssence Investments Limited ~ EB4REE IRERR/ 10057 100 100 100 100 RERR
British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD100 Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

REMBRRMEGR)
HE=E=—F+=f=+—ALFE

33 TEWRBARI MBS AFIFEIS 33, Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates
(%) (continued)

(a) FEMBLT(E)

(a) Principal subsidiaries (continued)

FisRER AL

i,/ mai BRITRS BRRFENR Percentage of attributable equity directly

Place of Particular of BELARERRE s50RF
4] Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the held by the IERH
Name establishment  paid up registered capital Company Group Principal activities

2021 2020 2021 2020
Y% Y% Y% Y%
FH(FE)ERAF Bk WRERR/ 28T 100 100 100 100 REHR
Dan Form (Ching) Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Investment holding
PHA(ER)BRAA M) BA 10000005 X8R,/ - 100 - 100 REZR
Dan Form (Hong Kong) Limited (Note 1) Hong Kong 1,000,007 Investment holding
1,000,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$1,000,000
Dawna Range Company Limited BE AREBRR/ 2057 - - - 100 &R
(Note 1) Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$20 Investment holding
BRNFERERAA B2 1,000 &M%,/ 10,0007 - - 100 100 YEEE
Diamond Property Management Hong Kong 1,000 Ordinary shares/HK§10,000 Property management
Company Limited
ERRERRAA &R 1BEER/ VAT - - 100 100 WEkE
Gold Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
EiRERAA Bk 100008 &2,/ 100007 - - 100 100 WERE
Harcape Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Ordinary shares/HK$10,000 Property investment
HERARRAR BA 1010000R %,/ - - 100 100 REZR
Keen Safe Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,010,007 Investment holding
1,010,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$1,010,000

Kirshman Limited B WERR/ 28T 100 100 100 100 REER

Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Investment holding
ERBIERAR ABURER 1BEE/ 1% - - 100 100 WERE
Man Lee Offshore Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD! Property investment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2021

33. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates
(continued)

(a) Principal subsidiaries (continued)

FisRER AL
it/ R BRITRS MERFHR Percentage of attributable equity directly
Place of Particular of RELFERRR s5ARF
4] Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the held by the FERH
Name establishment  paid up registered capital Company Group Principal activities

2021 2020 2021 2020

Y% Y% Y% Y%

FEREBRAA ABERAE 1BEER/ 1% - - 100 100 WERE
Oriental Dragon Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD! Property investment
REREERLA B WREER/ 28T - - 100 100 WERE
Top Power Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Property investment
BRRAERAR BH 1REER /18T - - 100 100 ¥EEE
Wide Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
REEBERRLA BB 1BCEER 127 - - 100 100 WERE
Winshine Properties Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment
AEERAREARAR RE 2,150000% 7 - - 100 100 HERE

(Hit2) PRC USD2,150,000 Property investment
Hat - Notes:
1. ZEMBAREREEZE_T=_—F+=-A=+— 1. These subsidiaries are disposed of during the year ended 3 1st December, 2021.

BIUEFEHE -

2. FZARIRINEBERE 2. The company is wholly-foreign owned enterprise.

ERIBTEERRIBXEAEE L XERE
ENNBAR - EFRRRMHEMHBARNF
AERSEHFAERBE -

BEAFREIZANER R B TEAERE?

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year.
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FEMBERERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE——FFf - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2021

33. TEMB AR LEE N AIFFE  33. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

(%) (continued)
(b) EEBELR (b) Principal associates
FEESHE
=30 A ] FrisRRiEE St
Principal place Percentage of
of operation and attributable equity directly
place of
218 incorporation/ FRERA FERD
Name establishment held by the Group Principal activities
2021 2020
% %
I REEFEEREBR QR R (faE1) (BfzE1) BHET
Beijing Jingyuan Property PRC (Note 1) (Note 1) In liquidation
Development Co., Ltd
TEEIRERR AR (HaE2) BB - 50 REER
Ho Pok Investment Hong Kong Investment holding
Company Limited (Note 2)
BEBXARAR(H22) B8 - 50 WEIRE
Kin Tong Land Investment Hong Kong Property investment
Company Limited (Note 2)
Zeta Estates Limited (Note 2) S - 3333 WEERRYFERE
Hong Kong Property development and
property investment
izt - Notes:
1. I RBEEHEREARARNENFNETE 1. Beijing Jingyuan Property Development Co., Ltd is in liquidation during both years.
A o
2. ZEMENRENBE_T_—F+-A=t— 2 These associates are disposed of during the year ended 3 1st December, 2021.

HUEFEHE -
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SEMESEHEE SUMMARY OF THE GROUP’'S
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

—2-—F —IZT-TF ZT-hEF ZT-NF ZT—tF
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
FBT FET F&r FEr F&r
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

WA Revenue 38,166 51,251 55,944 58,454 60,004
& (1R ) s Al Operating (loss) profit (1,563,826) 15,242 52,704 62,259 83,552
FE(EEEE A A Share of (loss) profit of

(E518) & F) associates (907)  (69,029) 8,967 56,302 99,051
FREE AT (&8 ) & F (Loss) profit before taxation (1,564,733) (53,787) 61,671 118,561 182,603
FrisfisEn(Z L) Income tax credit (expense) 1,681 (2,863) (3,657) (5.814) (13,438)
REZE (BB &F (Loss) profit for the year (1,563,052) (56,650) 58,014 112,747 169,165
ERER Attributable to:

PR A Equity holders (1,563,052)  (56,650) 58,014 112,747 169,165

F2771} BN JEN BN BN

HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents

FHR(EE) BT (Loss) earnings per share (125.98) (4.57) 4.67 9.08 13.62
BEE Total assets 1,791,326 4,544,502 4,658,964 4,714,880 4,894,582
BmaE Total liabilities (185,905) (198583) (222,375) (205730) (191,185)

BEFE Net assets 1,605,421 4,345919 4,436,589 4,509,150 4,703,397
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